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Endorsement by the Board of Directors and the CEO

HS Orka hf. (the "Company" or "HS Orka") is a privately owned power generator in Iceland with power licences of
2149 MW in total for electrical power production, of which 205 MW is for geothermal and 9.9 MW is for
hydropower production. The Company sells electricity to individuals and companies in all areas of Iceland as well
as to power intensive industries. HS Orka also produces hot water for heating and cold water for sales to a
distribution company which delivers the products to nearby communities. Furthermore, HS Orka produces
geothermal by-products, such as brine and steam, which it delivers and sells, as well as electricity and hot and
cold water to companies in the Resource Park, that are located in the vicinity of its geothermal power plants.

The financial statements of HS Orka for the year 2022 have been prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union (EU) and with additional Icelandic
disclosure requirements.

Business operations in the year 2022

The Company's operating revenues for the year 2022 amounted to ISK 10,591 million (2021: ISK 9,234 million)
and profit after tax amounted to ISK 69 million (2021: ISK 2,253 million). Total comprehensive loss was ISK 66
million (2021: total comprehensive income ISK 1,874 million). The Company's assets amounted to ISK 69,043
million at the end of December 2022 (2021: ISK 59,484 million). Equity at year end amounted to ISK 28,632
million (2021: ISK 30,128 million) or 41.5% of total assets in 2022 (2021: 50.6%). Equity ratio if subordinated
shareholder loan would be classified as equity was at year end 2022 49.4%. Reference is made to the statement
of changes in equity regarding information on changes in equity during the year. The average number of
employees was 85 in 2022 (2021: 73).

The power generation in MWh in 2022 was about the same as in 2021. Nevertheless some uncertainty remains
with regard to the generation development of the Reykjanes geothermal resource. The condition and utilisation
of the geothermal resource has a material impact on HS Orka’s long-term performance. In 2022, continued
emphasis has been on the constant development in the conceptual models and the newly developed reservoir
models in order to stabilise the production capacity and ensure the sustainable use of the resource.

An expansion and modernisation of Svartengis power plant, or SVA 7, was fully funded in 2022 after HS Orka
secured a USD 62 million, equivalent to about ISK 8.8 billion financing from two of the four banks in the group of
HS Orka’s European lenders, in addition to a USD 38 million, equivalent to ISK 5.5 billion loan from the Company’s
shareholders.

In late December the 30 MW expansion of the Reykjanes power plant, or REY 4, was reclassed as an operating
asset when commercial operations by generating electricity to grid started, a few months earlier than scheduled.

Other projects being developed on the Reykjanes peninsula are Eldvorp, Austurengjar and Sveifluhals in the
Krysuvik area, which is a rich geothermal capacity area and a future source of hot water for the capital area.
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Endorsement by the Board of Directors and the CEO, contd.

Towards the end of July 2022, an increase in seismic activity was monitored at the eruption site at Fagradalsfjall
and close to Grindavik. The seismic activity led to an eruption on 3 August, when a new fissure opened about 1
km east of the main crater and about 8.5 km away from Svartsengi. The eruption was very active in the beginning
but showed a rapid decline and lasted until end of August. Since then, the activity has not picked up again. The
eruption did not have any negative effects on the operations at Svartsengi.

Further information on matters related to the environment, human resources, sustainability and social
responsibility is disclosed in the Non-financial reporting chapter.

The Board of Directors propose that no dividend to be paid in the year 2023.

Share capital and Articles of Association

On a shareholders meeting held on 1 September 2022 a proposal from the Board of Directors based on Article 55
of the Companies Act. no. 2/1995, a share capital reduction by 205,250 shares was approved. The share capital of
the Company was reduced based on item 2 of Paragraph 2 of Article 51 of the Companies Act with payment to
Shareholders in the amount of USD 10.13 million in cash (equivalent to ISK 1,429 million). The share capital was
reduced by ISK 205,250 of nominal value or 205,250 shares and was after the reduction ISK 6,561,510.

The number of shareholders at year end 2022 was 2, unchanged from last year. HSO 1 ehf. with 99,99997% of
shares and HSO 2 ehf. with 0,00003% of shares. The ultimate beneficial owners were Jardvarmi slhf. and funds
managed by Ancala Partners LLP, each with 50% of shares.

Corporate Governance

HS Orka is a limited liability company operating under Act No. 2/1995 respecting Public Limited Companies. The
framework for Corporate Governance practices within the Company is defined by the provisions of law, a
shareholders” agreement, the Company's Articles of Association and Rules of Procedure for the Board and its sub-
committees. The Company is governed by shareholders meetings, the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive
Officer. Further information is provided in the Corporate Governance Statement which is an appendix to these
Financial Statements.

The Board of Directors held eleven meetings in 2022, the Audit Committee four meetings and the Remuneration
Committee seven meetings. The Board of Directors consists of four members with equal representation of
women and men. The Company’s Executive Board in the year 2022 consisted of seven members, four men and
three women. The ratio of female workers at HS Orka in the end of 2022 was 19%.

HS Orka follows a formal risk management process to identify and control the Company’s main risk factors. HS
Orka has recently implemented a new comprehensive management tool to increase transparency and enable
each division to better manage risks.

Information on matters related to financial risk management is disclosed in note 28.

Non-Financial reporting

Further to the content of this endorsement, a reference is made to the enclosed chapter Non-financial reporting.
The Company complies in all main respect to the Private Ltd. Act No 2/1995 as amended and the Act on Annual
Accounts No. 3/2006 and other applicable legislations and regulations.
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Endorsement by the Board of Directors and the CEO, contd.

Statement of the Board of Directors and the CEO

To the best knowledge of the Board of Directors and the CEO, the Company's financial statements are in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU and additional disclosure
requirements and it is the opinion of the Board of Directors and the CEO that the financial statements give a true
and fair view of the Company's assets, liabilities and financial position as at 31 December 2022, its financial
performance, and the changes in cash flows during the year 2022.

Furthermore, it is the opinion of the Board of Directors and the CEO that the financial statements and the
endorsement by the Board of Directors and the CEO contain a fair overview of the Company's financial
development, performance and position, including descriptions of the main risk factors and uncertainties faced
by the Company.

The Board of Directors and the CEO of HS Orka have today discussed the Company's financial statements for the

year 2022 and confirmed by means of their signatures. The Board of Directors and the CEO will submit the
financial statements for approval at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 26 April 2023.

Svartsengi, 27 February 2023

The Board of Directors

Adrian Pike Bjarni Pérdur Bjarnason

Chairman of the board

Ingunn Agnes Kro Heike Bergmann

Chief Executive Officer

Témas Mar Sigurdsson
Chief Executive Officer
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Independent auditor's report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of HS Orka hf.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of HS Orka hf. (“the Company”), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2022, the statement of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and
additional Icelandic disclosure requirement in accordance with Icelandic Financial Statements Act no. 3/2006.

Our opinion is consistent with the additional report submitted to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of financial statements in Iceland and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We declare, to the best of our knowledge and belief, that we have not provided any prohibited non-audit services,
as referred to in Article 5(1) of the Regulation (EU) 537/2014 and that we remained independent in conducting the
audit.

We were first appointed as auditors by the Annual General Meeting in the year 1980 of the predecessor of HS Orka
hf., Hitaveita Sudurnesja. We have been re-appointed by resolutions passed by the annual general meeting
uninterrupted since then.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Independent Auditor's Report, contd.

Key Audit Matters, cont.

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in the audit

At year end 2022 Power Plants amounted ISK
54,286 million (ref. note 4.e and 14) and Operating
assets under construction amounted to ISK 1,562
million (ref. note 15). The Power Plants are
measured at revalued cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment. The measurement is
based on value-in-use method by discounting
future cash-flows genereted by the underlying
assets. The recoverable amount of these assets
were assessed at year end and compared to the
carrying amount to assess whether there is a need

With the assistance of our valuation specialists we:

¢ Assessed the cash flow models used by management in their
calculations to assess recoverable amount at year end and
verified the calculations of the model.

e Focused on challenging management’s forecasting based on
the information about possible future utilization, capital
expenditure and revenues of the power plants, both for current
power plants and power plants under construction.

e Assessed the reasonableness of the discount rate used by

considering whether discount rates were within acceptable
ranges and compared to market variables.

for revaluation or an indication of impairment.

The results were that the Power Plants were
revalued (ref. note 14). e Performed sensitivity analysis on the assumption used.
We focused on these assets due to the size of the| e Concluded on the appropriateness of relevant disclosures.
carrying amount of the Power Plants in use and
under construction, which represent 81% of total
assets and because management’s assessment of
value in use involves significant judgement about
forcasting and discounting future cash flows which
are the basis of the measurement of the assets.

Therefore it is a key audit matter.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and CEO for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors and CEO are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and additional Icelandic disclosure requirement in
accordance with Icelandic Financial Statements Act no. 3/2006, and for such internal control as they determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors and CEO are responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors and CEO are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report, contd.:

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements, contd.:
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with The Board of Directors and audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with The Board of Directors and audit committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Article 104, Paragraph 2 of the Icelandic Financial Statements Act No.
3/2006, we confirm that, to the best of our knowledge, the report of the Board of Directors and CEO accompanying
the financial statements includes the information required by the Financial Statements Act if not disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements.

Reykjavik, 27 February 2023

KPMG ehf
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Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31 December 2022

Notes
OPEratiNg FEVENUE ...oiiiiee ittt e e 5
Other revenues (insUrance claim) ....oc.ccocveovieeeie e, 5,19
Realised aluminium hedges ........oooviiiiiiiice e 5
Production cost and cost of Sales .......cccceviiiiiiiiiiiicc 6
Gross profit
Other Operating EXPENSES ....cccviiiceeecieeeee e 7
Research and development ..o 8
Other expenses
Profit from operations
FINANCE INCOMIE 1.t
FINANCE COSES it
Net exchange rate differences .....oocooviiviici e
Changes in fair value of embedded derivatives ...........ccccceeveeeivieennnn. 34
Changes in fair value of other derivatives ........c.cccocveeviiiiicciicce 32,34
Net finance (expense) income 12
Share of loss of associates and subsidiaries ..........cccocvevvvvvieicieniennnnn, 17
Profit before income tax
INCOME TAX EXPENSE oot 13
Net profit
Other comprehensive loss
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of defined benefit liability ........cc.ooeeiviiiiiiii 24
Tax on items not reclassified to profit or 0SS .....cc.ccoeceeviiiiiiiiciece 13

Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive (loss) income

Notes on pages 12-44 are an integral part of these financial statements

2022 2021
10.591.147 9.233.500
87.090 414.801
86.957 (338.037)
(7.636.736) (7.303.623)
3.128.458 2.006.642
(1.053.178) (826.982)
(29.598) (28.808)
(1.082.776) (855.790)
2.045.681 1.150.852
55.586 10.343
(640.386) (438.590)
(1.806.542) (367.969)
(253.341) 2.168.690
687.760 294.378
(1.956.923) 1.666.852
(1.597) (1.271)
87.162 2.816.433
(17.756) (563.545)
69.406 2.252.889
(169.559) (473.486)
33.912 94.697
(135.647) (378.789)
(66.241) 1.874.100
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2022

Assets Notes 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Fixed assets
OPEratiNg ASSELS 1ottt 14 56.033.557 45.056.809
Operating assets under CONStrUCTION ...c..covveiiviiiieciee e 15 1.561.953 7.489.750
INTANEGIDIE @SSELS ..ot 16 1.480.767 1.451.573
Investments in associates and subsidiaries ..........cccoevvveiiiiiiiecciecees 17 600.762 602.359
Investments in other COMPANIES .......cc.viiiiiiiii e, 18 15.075 13.575
Embedded derivatives in power sales contracts .........coceevveeveeicieeennennn 34 306.569 484.457
Other deriVatiVES .....oviiiiiiece e 32 639.744 0
Total fixed assets 60.638.427 55.098.523

Current assets

[INVENTOIIES 1ot e e e e e e e e eaaaes 452.671 1.120.404
Trade and other receivables .......c..oocviiiiiic e 19 1.533.640 1.792.908
Embedded derivatives in power sales contracts .........cccceevvveevveiiieeennennn 34 37.028 112.481
Cash and cash equIValeNTs ......ccviioiiii e 20 6.381.226 1.359.394
Total current assets 8.404.564 4.385.186

Total assets 69.042.991 59.483.710

Equity and liabilities

Equity
Share CapItal c.oioii i 6.562 6.767
Share premium and statutory reServe .......ooccovveeeieccie e 1.238.368 1.238.368
REVAIUGLION FESEIVE ..o 9.768.911 10.466.882
Retained @arnNinNgS .....cooviiiiiice e 17.618.112 18.415.642
Total equity 21 28.631.953 30.127.659
Liabilities
LOaNSs and DOITOWINGS ...vvviiiieiiiecciee e 22 25.893.868 20.858.422
Subordinated shareholder 10an .........cccovvi e, 23 5.462.890 0
Pension 0blZatioNS ....c..coviiiiie e 24 2.931.000 2.852.000
Deferred tax liability ..oo.ooceii e 25 3.244.890 3.395.984
Other derVAtIVES ....iiieiieceee e 32 0 41.759
Lease COMMUEMENT ..ouuiiiiiii e 26 453.467 125.737
Total non-current liabilities 37.986.115 27.273.902
Current liabilities
LOaNSs anNd DOITOWINGS ....veiiiiieiiieceee e 22 15.375 15.375
Lease COMMUEMENT ..ouuiiiiiiiieie e 26 317.508 10.659
AlUMINIUM NEAZES ..o 34 15.023 21.280
TaX PAYADIE oo 25 139.468 52.037
Trade and other Payables ........ccooooviiiiiiiee e, 27 1.937.550 1.982.798
Total current liabilities 2.424.923 2.082.149
Total liabilities 40.411.038 29.356.051
Total liabilities and equity 69.042.991 59.483.710

Notes on pages 12-44 are an integral part of these financial statements
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2022

2021

Equity at 1 January 2021 ..................
Profit for the year .......cccccoeevveeienn.
Other comprehensive loss ...............
Total comprehensive income ..........
Decrease of Share Capital ................

Revaluation reserve transferred

to Retained earnings ..................
Equity at 31 December 2021 ...........

2022

Equity at 1 January 2022 ..................
Profit for the year .......cccccoeevviennenn.
Other comprehensive loss ...............
Total comprehensive loss ................
Decrease of Share Capital ...............

Revaluation reserve transferred

to Retained earnings ..................
Equity at 31 December 2022 ...........

Notes on pages 12-44 are an integral part of these financial statements

Share Share Revaluation Retained Total
Capital Premium Reserve Earnings Equity
7.294 1.238.368 11.220.586  19.442.711 31.908.959
2.252.889 2.252.889
(378.789) (378.789)
1.874.100 1.874.100
(527) (3.654.873) (3.655.400)
(753.703) 753.703 0
6.767 1.238.368 10.466.882 18.415.642 30.127.659
6.767 1.238.368 10.466.882 18.415.642 30.127.659
69.406 69.406
(135.647) (135.647)
(66.241) (66.241)
(205) (1.429.260) (1.429.465)
(697.971) 697.971 0

6.562 1.238.368 9.768.911 17.618.112 28.631.953
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 December 2022

Cash flows from operating activities Notes
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:

Gain on sale of 0Perating assets .....c..covvvvevieeeieeicie e
Pension obligations deCrease .........cccveevveiiieeccii e 24
Depreciation and amortization .........cccceeeeviioieeiiicccec e 11
Net finance expense (INCOME) ...oovviiieii i 12
Share of loss of associates and subsidiaries .......c.ccccovvvevveviiiiiniennnns 17
INCOME TAX EXPENSE ooiiiiiiiiiiee et 13
Cash generated by operations
Inventories, (inCrease), deCreaSse ......c.ccvvviivieeeie e
Receivables, decrease, (iNCrease) ....oovecveeivieeeie e,
Current liabilities, INCrEASE ......covvi i,

Net cash from operations before interest and taxes

INTErest rECEIVEM . .uviiiiiiiciec et
INEEIEST PAIA woeiieiii e
INCOME TAXES PAIT ©.iiieiiiciieece e
Cash from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of 0perating assets ......cc.covvveeiiiiieeeeieeee e 14
Acquisition of operating assets under construction ..........c.ccceeveen... 12,15
Proceeds from sale of operating assets .......ccccoevveivviiecieeccecccie e,
Acquisition of intangible assets .........ocvviiiiieiiiiecee e 16
Acquisition of shares in associates and other companies ................... 17,18
Dividends received from associates ........cccccevvvviiriiiiiieiiieireeeeeeee, 17

Cash flows from financing activities

Share capital redUCtion .......ccciiiiiiiiiic e 21
New [ong-term DOrFOWINES ...c...oovveieiieeeie e 22
Subordinated shareholder [0an .......c.cccoocviviiiiiiiccc 23
Repayment of DOIrrOWINGES ...ccovviiiiiiiicee e 22
Repayment of lease liability ........cooveiiiiiiiiiiec e, 26

Financing activities
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ..........cccccoevieeeeen
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held ..............cc.oooeen.

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January .......ccccoeveevveeiiiiiiie e
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December .......ccocvevviiiiiieiiieeieee,

Investing and financing activities not affecting cash flows
Acquisition of operating assets under construction ..........c.ccceeveen...

Current liabilities, (decrease), iNCrease ........ccoceeevveeveeecie e
INVENTONIES, AECIASE ..ii v

Notes on pages 12-44 are an integral part of these financial statements

2022 2021
69.406 2.252.889
(7.470) (7.303)
(90.559) (89.486)
2.545.453 2.429.905
1.956.923 (1.666.852)
1.597 1.271
17.756 563.545
4.493.106 3.483.969
(7.924) 457.213
259.268 (610.237)
268.182 122.675
5.012.632 3.453.620
55.586 10.343
(776.785) (470.509)
(47.507) 0
4.243.927 2.993.454
(1.091.553) (1.211.036)
(4.993.065) (2.759.650)
14.318 13.650
(38.239) (18.121)
(1.500) (2.500)

0 2.428
(6.110.040) (3.975.230)
(1.429.465) (3.655.400)
2.945.635 4.504.526
5.485.300 0
(15.375) (15.375)
(64.025) (5.298)
6.922.071 828.453
5.055.958 (153.324)
(34.126) (9.765)
1.359.394 1.522.482
6.381.226 1.359.394
(392.930) (622.864)
(282.727) 622.864
675.657 0
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Reporting entity

HS Orka hf. is a limited liability company domiciled in Iceland. The Company's registered office address is
Orkubraut 3, Svartsengi, Grindavik, Iceland. The Company generates and sells electricity as well as cold water
and hot water for heating. The Company is ultimately owned by Jarévarmi slhf. and funds managed by Ancala
Partners LLP, holding a 50% share each. The Company's Financial Statements are a part of the Consolidated
Financial Statements of HS Orka Holding hf. and information on the Company's return and financial standing
is included therein. As a result the Company is not required by IFRS to prepare consolidated financial
statements.

2. Statement of compliance

The Company’s financial statements are prepared according to IFRS as adopted by the EU and additional
Icelandic disclosure requirement in accordance with Icelandic financial statement act. no 3/2006.

These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 February 2023.

3. Basis of preparation

a. Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost, except for the following material items in
the statement of financial position:

- the majority of operating assets are recognized at revalued cost, which is their fair value at the revaluation
date

- embedded derivatives in power sales contracts and other derivatives are measured at fair value

- defined benefit pension obligatons measured at the present value of the pension obligation

- shares in other companies are measured at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value

b. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Icelandic kronas (ISK), which is the Company's functional
currency. All financial information presented in ISK has been rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

c. Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual future outcomes may differ from present estimates and
assumptions potentially having a material future effect on the Company’s historical experience and other
facts and circumstances. Revisions to estimates and the resulting effects on the carrying amounts of the
Company's assets and liabilities are accounted for prospectively.

Actual future outcomes could differ from present estimates and assumptions, potentially having a material
future effect on the Company’s historical experience and other facts and circumstances.

Information about critical judgments in applying accounting policies and assumptions and estimates that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the
following notes:

- Note 14. Depreciation of operating assets and revaluation of operating assets.
- Note 15 and 16. Impairment of assets under construction and intangibles.

- Note 34. Fair value of embedded derivatives in power sales agreements.

- Note 24. Pension obligations.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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d. Measurement of fair values
A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This
includes staff members of the finance department, led by the CFO, that have overall responsibility for
overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values.

The finance department regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third
party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the finance
department staff assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such
valuations meet the requirements of IFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such
valuations should be classified.

Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company's Audit Committee.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the finance department uses market observable data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows:

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorised in different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values and accounting policies is included
in the following notes:

- Note 14. Operating Assets.
- Note 34. Embedded derivatives in power sales contract.
- Notes 28-36. Risk management.

4. Significant accounting policies

The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies set out in this note to all periods presented in
these financial statements except as explained in Changes in accounting policies.

a. Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when it is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for using the equity
method and are recognized initially at cost.
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4. Significant accounting policies, contd.

b. Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Company has significant influence, but not control, over their
financial and operating policies. Significant influence is presumed to exist when the Company holds between
20 and 50 percent of the voting power of another entity.

Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method and are recognized initially at cost. The
cost of the investment includes transaction costs.

The financial statements include the Company’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
after adjustments to align the accounting policies with those of the Company, from the date that significant
influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases.

When the Company’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity-accounted investee, the carrying
amount of that interest, including any long-term investments, is reduced to zero, and the recognition of
further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Company has an obligation or has made
payments on behalf of the investee.

c. Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at exchange
rates at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. The foreign
currency gain or loss on monetary items is the difference between amortized cost in the functional currency
at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the
amortized cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to
the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined. Foreign currency
differences arising on retranslation are recognized in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.

d. Financial instruments

(i) Non-derivative financial assets

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other
financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a
significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not
retain control of the financial asset.
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4. Significant accounting policies, contd.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Company classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories: financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise investment in other companies. All other
financial assets are measured at amortized cost.

(ii) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

—itis held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

— its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Non-derivative financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise cash and cash equivalents and trade
and other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with original maturities of three months
or less. Bank balances that are subject to third party contractual restrictions are included as part of cash
unless the restrictions result in a bank balance no longer meeting the definition of cash. If the contractual
restrictions to use the cash extend beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting period, the related
amounts are classified as non-current in the statement of financial position.

(iii) Non-derivative financial liabilities

The Company initially recognizes debt securities issued on the date that they are originated. All other
financial liabilities are recognized initially on the trade date at which the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or canceled, or
expire. The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of
the modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value.

The Company classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category. Such
financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition these financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method.

Non-derivative financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings and trade and other payables.
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4. Significant accounting policies, contd.

(iv) Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are recognized initially at fair value; attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss
as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives (including embedded derivatives) are measured at
fair value in the statement of financial position and changes in fair value are recognized in profit or loss as
part of financial income or cost. Realised cash flows resulting from settlement of aluminium derivatives,
entered into for hedging purposes, are recorded in profit or loss along with revenue.

Separable embedded derivatives

Embedded derivatives are separated from the host contract and accounted for separately if the economic
characteristics and risks of the host contract and the embedded derivative are not closely related, a separate
instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative, and
the combined instrument is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.

HS Orka has a long-term power sales agreement which contains embedded derivative. Income from this
agreement is directly correlated to changes in the future price of aluminum. Changes in the fair value of
derivatives is not designated as a hedge and separable embedded derivatives are recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

(v) Share capital

Ordinary shares

Incremental costs directly attributable to issuance of ordinary shares are recognized as a deduction from
equity, net of any tax effects.

e. Operating assets

(i) Recognition and measurement

ltems of operating assets are measured at cost or revalued cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-
constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other costs directly attributable to
bringing the assets to a working condition for their intended use and capitalized borrowing costs. Purchased
software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that equipment.

The Company's power plants and real estate holdings are measured at revalued cost in the statement of
financial position. The revalued cost is the fair value at the revaluation date less accumulated depreciation.
Revaluation is carried out on a regular basis. Any increase in the carrying amount of operating assets as a
result of a revaluation is recognized in equity under the heading of revaluation reserve net of income tax.
Depreciation of the revalued cost is recognized in profit or loss and an adjustment reflecting this amount is
transferred quarterly from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings. Revaluations are expected to occur
every three to four years or when market factors indicate a significant change in value. The latest valuation
of Svartsengi Power plant, Reykjanes Power plant and the Brd Power plant plant took place on 31 December
2022.

When parts of an item of operating assets has different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
of operating assets.
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4. Significant accounting policies, contd.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of operating assets are determined by comparing the proceeds from
disposal with the carrying amount of operating assets, and are recognized on a net basis within other income
or other expenses in profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the revaluation
reserve are transferred to retained earnings.

(i) Subsequent costs
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company. Ongoing repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost or revalued cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components
of individual assets are assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder of
that asset, that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
component of an item of operating assets. Land is not depreciated.

Operating assets are depreciated from the date they are installed and are ready for use, or in respect of
internally constructed assets, from the date the asset is completed and ready for use.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative year are as follows:

POWET PLANTS 1.ttt et e et e e e et e et e e b e e et et b e e tb e etb e e eabe e erbaeeabeeabe 40-60 years
BOTENOIES .ottt b et e et e et eab e et are s 20 years
ElECEIICAl SYSTEIMS 1ttt t et e et eeetb e e stbeeenbeessbeesnree e 50 years
Hot water and cold water distribution SYSTEMS .....cceiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeece e 50 years
REAI ESTALE .ttt et et e et et b e ntbe e tba et arr e 50 years

Other operating assets 5-20years
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

f. Intangible assets

(i) Research and development

Expenditure on research or activities, undertaken with the prospect of surveying geothermal areas, where
geothermal resource is uncertain, and surveying other areas suitable for power production by other sources,
and in order to gain new scientific or technical knowledge, is recognized in profit or loss when incurred.

Development activities involve surveys of geothermal areas and other areas suitable for power production by
other sources where there is probability of future development and power production. Development
expenditure is capitalized only if development costs can be measured reliably, the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the Company intends to
and has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset. The expenditure
capitalized includes the cost of materials, direct labor, overhead costs that are directly attributable to
preparing the asset for its intended use, and capitalized borrowing costs. Other development expenditure is
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.
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When a decision on producing power or harnessing of geothermal areas has been made, and all required
licenses have been obtained, the preparation cost due to harnessing or production of power is transferred to
operating assets under construction.

Capitalized development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Development
assets are tested annually for impairment.

(ii) Other intangible assets
Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, including software, which have finite useful lives
are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

(iii) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss when incurred.

(iv) Amortization
Amortization is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value.

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
depreciable intangible assets from the date that they are available for use. The estimated useful lives for the
current and comparative years are as follows:

SOTEWAIE .ottt 5-10 years
Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.

g. Leased assets

At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices.
However, for the leases of property the Company has elected not to separate non-lease components and
account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease component.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the
Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will
exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the
underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition,
the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.
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The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external
financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset
leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

—fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

—amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

— the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option,
and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate
early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if
there is a revised in-substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities as a
separate line item in the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value
assets and short-term leases, including IT equipment. The Company recognises the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

h. Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is based on
the first-in first-out principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing
them to their existing location and condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated cost of completion and selling expenses.
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i. Impairment

(i) Non-derivative financial assets

A financial asset not classified as at fair value through profit or loss, including an interest in an equity-
accounted investee, is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is objective evidence that
it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that loss event(s) had an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

(ii) Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For intangible assets that are not yet available for use, the
recoverable amount is estimated each year at the same time.

Impairment is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.
Impairment loss of revalued operating assets is recognized in equity under revaluation reserve up to the
value of the reserve, after which they are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses of other assets are
recognized in profit or loss.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no
impairment loss had been recognized.

j. Employee benefits

(i) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for
contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit
or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are
recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

(ii) Defined benefit plans

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans or pension fund commitment is
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that current and former
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted
to determine its present value. The calculation is performed annually by qualified actuaries and specialists
from the pension funds using a method based on earned benefits. Remeasurements of the net defined
liabilities related to actuarial gains and losses are recognised in OCI, other expenses related to the defined
benefit plans are recognized as incurred in profit or loss.
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k. Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at
a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as a finance cost.

I. Revenue

The Company recognises revenue from the following major sources

(i) Electricity

Revenue from the sale of electricity along with power transmission is recognised when control is transferred
to the customer. Transfer of control occurs when the electricity is delivered. The supply of electricity to the
customer is regarded as one performance obligation. Revenue from the sale of electricity along with power
transmission are recognized in profit or loss based on recorded measurement of delivery during the period.
Between measurements, usage is estimated based on prior period usage.

Revenues are usually invoiced monthly with 30 day payment terms.

(i) Water (hot and cold)

Revenue is recognised when control is transferred to the customer. Transfer of control occurs when the
water is delivered. The supply of water to the customer is regarded as one performance obligation. Revenue
from the sale of hot water is recognized in profit or loss based on recorded measurement of delivery during
the period. Between measurements, usage is estimated based on prior period usage.

Revenues are usually invoiced monthly with 30 day payment terms.

(iii) Other

Other revenues includes sale of service, rental of facilities and equipment, steam, brine and other sales.
Revenue is recognised when goods are transferred or services are performed and when the performance
obligation is satisfied and control of the goods or services is transferred to the customer.

Revenues are usually invoiced monthly with 30 day payment terms.

m. Net finance income (expense)

Finance income is comprised of interest income on funds invested, dividend income from investments in
other companies, changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, foreign
currency gains and gains on derivatives that are recognized in profit or loss. Interest income is recognized as
it accrues in profit or loss, using the effective interest method. Dividend income is recognized on the date
that the Company’s right to receive payment is established.

Finance costs are comprised of interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions,
foreign currency losses, losses on derivatives that are recognized in profit or loss, changes in the fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, and impairment losses recognized on financial assets other
than trade receivables. Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either finance income or finance costs
depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss position.
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n. Income tax

Income tax recovery (expense) is comprised of current and deferred tax. Current tax and deferred tax are
recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary differences, to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilized.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized.

0. Government grants, including European Union (EU)

Government grants related to assets are initially recognised as deferred income at fair value if there is
reasonable assurance that they will be received and the Company will comply with the conditions associated
with the grant; they are then recognised in profit or loss as other income on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset.

Grants that compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the periods in which the expenses are recognised. The Company received no grants in the year 2022
(2021: nil).

p. New standards and interpretations

A number of new standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 January 2022 and earlier
application is permitted; however, the Company has not early adopted the new or amended standards in
preparing these consolidated financial statements.

The following amended standards and interpretations are not expected to have a significant impact on the
financial statements.

— Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to
IAS 12).

—IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts.

— Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2).

— Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8).

— Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments to IAS 1).

— Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (Amendments to IFRS 16, Leases).
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5. Revenue split

The Company's revenue split is as follows:

2022 2021

Electricity pOWer iINTENSIVET ......iiiiice et 3.277.114 2.911.231
ElECErICItY OTNEI oottt 5.707.890 5.149.985
Water (hot and COld) ..o 1.024.026 928.444
OB e 582.117 243.840
Revenue from contracts With CUSOMErS ....c.cooviiiiiiiiiiiiie e 10.591.147 9.233.500
[NSUFANCE ClATM 1ottt ettt et eaeesaa e 87.090 414.801
Realised aluminium heAEES .....c..oiviiii e 86.957 (338.037)
10.765.193 9.310.264

"The definition of electricity power intensive is an end user who receives at least 80 GWh in one place within
3 year period in accordance with Electricity Act, No. 65/2003.

6. Production cost, cost of sales and service

2022 2021
ProUCTION COSE .oiiiiiiiiiiie e 4.830.370 4.804.065
COSt OF SAIES . 2.806.366 2.499.558

7.636.736 7.303.623

Production costs, cost of sales and services are specified as follows based on nature of cost:

2022 2021
Salaries and related EXPENSES ....oviiiiii it 929.033 933.493
BT o] (=Tl =Y o ISP SRR 2.483.671 2.373.398
POWET PUICRASES ...viiiiiieciieeeee et 2.574.272 2.332.857
TraNSMISSION COST cuviiiiiiiiiiie ittt 653.521 526.533
Maintenance and other production COSt ........cocvviiiiiiiieiiiccee e 996.239 1.137.342

7.636.736 7.303.623

7. Other operating expenses

2022 2021
Salaries and related eXPENSES ....cvii i 519.781 443.268
Increase in pension fund obligation .........ccoviiiiiiiiiic e 57.318 52.764
AdMINISTrativVe EXPENSES ....vviieie et 416.073 276.802
Depreciation and amortization .........cccveioeiiii e 60.006 54.148
1.053.178 826.982

8. Research and development
2022 2021
Salaries and related EXPENSES ...coviiiiii et 15.867 12.637
D o] o] [T K SRR PP 11.955 13.812
Depreciation and amortization .......cccvieciiiiiiiiiic e 1.776 2.360
29.598 28.808
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9. Salaries and related expenses

2022 2021

SAlAITES ettt 1.402.972 1.263.639
Contribution to defined contribution fund ... 182.177 163.524
Increase in pension obligation, see NOte 24 .......cccoevviiiiiiiiie e 226.877 526.250
Other salary related EXPENSES ...cviiiviieie et 169.989 138.761
1.982.015 2.092.174

Average number of employees equivalent .......c.ccocveiieiiiiiiiecccce e 85 73

Salaries and salary related expenses including changes in pension obligations are allocated as follows:

2022 2021

Capitalized ON PrOJECES .iiiviiiiiieie e 290.458 176.527
Production cost and cost 0f SAle .....iiiiiiiiiiiee 929.033 933.493
Research and developmeNnt ... 15.867 12.637
Other Operating EXPENSES ....covvieiiiiiiee ettt 577.099 496.032
Recognized in other comprehensive iNCOME .......cocvviiiiiiiiiciieece e 169.559 473.486
1.982.015 2.092.174

Salaries paid to the Board of Directors and management amounted to ISK 81 million in 2022 (2021: ISK 73
million).
10. Auditor’s fee

Fee’s paid to the Company’s auditors in the year 2022 were ISK 21.5 million (2021: ISK 21.3 million) thereof
ISK 12.2 million (2021: ISK 11.7 million) reflects fees for the audit of the Annual Financial Statements. Other
services bought from KPMG amounted to ISK 9.3 million in 2022 (2021: ISK 9.6 million).

11. Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation and amortization is specified as follows:

2022 2021
Depreciation of operating assets, See NOte 14 .....cccevvvvieiiiivieeciiecee e 2.536.408 2.422.233
Amotization of intangible assets, S NOTE 16 ....cocvvviviiiiiiiiiiieciieeee e 9.045 7.672
2.545.453 2.429.905

Depreciation, amortization and impairment is allocated as follows:
Production cost and cost 0f Sales ......ooiiiiiiiiii e 2.483.671 2.373.398
Other Operating EXPENSES ....ioiiieiiiiiiee et 60.006 54.148
Reasearch and developmeENt ...t 1.776 2.360
2.545.453 2.429.905
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12. Finance income and expense

Finance income and expenses are specified as follows:

Finance income:

2022 2021
Interest income on cash, loans and receivables .......ccccccooviiiiviiiiii 55.586 10.343
55.586 10.343
Finance costs:
Interest expense on [0ans and BOrrOWINGS .......ccveevviiiieeiiiicccee e (613.569) (432.368)
Interest expense on lease liabilities ....cc.coooeeviiiiiiiiiii e (26.817) (6.222)
(640.386) (438.590)
Net exchange rate differenCes ... (1.806.542) (367.969)
Changes in fair value of embedded derivatives ..........ccccccevviieiiiiiccccee (253.341) 2.168.690
Changes in fair value of other derivatives ..o 687.760 294.378
(1.372.123) 2.095.099
Net finance (EXPENSE) INCOME ....civiiiiie e (1.956.923) 1.666.852
Capitalized interest at 4.42% (2021: 3.53%) ..coveveeiiieiiiieeieee e 416.055 201.159
13. Income tax
Effective tax in the income statement is specified as follows:
2022 2021
Origination and reversal of temporary difference........ccccoovevviiiiiiiiiiiieenc 121.712 (511.508)
CUITENT EAX. 1ttt ettt ettt et et e e et e e et e e e e e et e e et e e eteeeraee s (139.468) (52.037)
(17.756) (563.545)
Effective tax rate is specified as follows:
PrOfit fOr the VAT .. 69.406 2.252.889
[NCOME TAX EXPENSE . utiiiiieee e e ettt e e ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e b e e e e e e e s aabbaeeeeeas 17.756 563.545
Profit before INCOME TaX.....oovi it 87.162 2.816.433
2022 2021
Income tax at current tax rate .........cocoeevenn. (17.432) 20,0% 563.287) 20,0%
Effect of associates and subsidiaries ............ (319) 0,4% (254) 0,0%
Other itemMS .ooveeeiieceec e (4) 0,0% (4) 0,0%
Effective income taxrate ......coccovvveveiveeeennnn, (17.756) 20,4% 563.545) 20,0%
Income tax recognized in OCl is specified as follows: 2022 2021
Tax on other item that will not be reclassified to proft or loss .........cccccoevveenn. (33.912) (94.697)
Total iNCOME taX IN OC| ..ocuviiiiiice e (33.912) (94.697)
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14. Operating assets

Revaluation of operating assets

Svartsengi, Reykjanes and Bru power plants were revalued to fair value on 31 December 2022. The
revaluation during the year 2022 amounted to ISK 4,000 million for Svartsengi, negative revaluation ISK 4,000
million for Reykjanes and no revaluation was recognized for Bru. Fair value of the power plants was
determined using the discounted cash flow method. The discount rate was 10.43% for Svartsengi, 10.78% for
Reykjanes and 8.98% for Bru. The cash flow was projected using estimates for the next nineteen years and
expected future value calculated for the years thereafter. Projections and estimates are based on historical
knowledge and data on the generation development in the area. The calculations were performed by the HS
Orka finance division and are categorised as Level 3 fair value hierarchy.

Other

Power operating

plants assets Total
Historical cost
Balance at 1January 2021 ....coooveviiiiiiieeie e 49.171.122 2.130.660 51.301.782
Additions during the year ........ccccevvieeiiiiiiec e 1.145.026 66.011 1.211.036
Eliminated on disposal .......ccccooivieiiiiiiiiicceccce e 0 (20.382) (20.382)
LEASE @SSELS .uiiiiiiiiiiee ettt 42.893 0 42.893
Balance at 31 December 2021 ....cccooovvevvieeiiieeie e 50.359.041 2.176.289 52.535.330
Additions during the year ........cccccovvieeiiiiiie e 990.214 101.340 1.091.553
Transferred from operating assets under construction ......... 11.910.045 0 11.910.045
Transferred to operating assets under construction .............. (180.198) 0 (180.198)
Depreciation adjustments due to revaluation .............c.......... (9.343.853) 0 (9.343.853)
Eliminated on disposal .......cccoovviiiiiiiiiicicceeeee e (148.111) (81.971) (230.082)
LEASE @SSELS .uiiiiiiiiiiie et 698.603 0 698.603
Balance at 31 December 2022 ....ccccovvevivieeiiie e 54.285.741 2.195.657 56.481.398
Depreciation
Balance at 1January 2021 .....oooveviiiiiiieeie e 4.697.997 372.325 5.070.322
Depreciation for the year ......ccccvvieeveiiiiice e 2.338.213 84.021 2.422.233
Eliminated on disposal .......ccccooivieiiiiiiiiccceee 0 (14.035) (14.035)
Balance at 31 December 2021 .....c.covveviieiiieiie e 7.036.210 442.311 7.478.521
Depreciation for the year ......cccccovvveiveiiiie e 2.454.379 82.029 2.536.408
Eliminated on disposal .......ccccoovvieiiiiiiiicccece e (146.736) (76.498) (223.234)
Depreciation adjustments due to revaluation .............c.......... (9.343.853) 0 (9.343.853)
Balance at 31 December 2022 ....cccoovveviiieiiie e 0 447.841 447.841
Net book value
Book value at 1 January 20271 ....cccovvveeeviiiiieeeieeceeeee e 44.473.125 1.758.335 46.231.460
Book value at 31 December 2021 ......cooveeviveeciiiiiieecieeeee 43.322.831 1.733.978 45.056.809
Book value at 31 December 2022 ......ccoeevvveeiiiicieecieeeee e, 54.285.741 1.747.816 56.033.557
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14. Operating assets, contd.

Net book value without revaluation

1JanUary 20271 oo 30.506.361 1.699.367 32.205.728
31 December 2021 .o 30.288.675 1.677.167 31.965.842
31 December 2022 ..o 42.116.783 1.693.163 43.809.946
Depreciation rates ......cooeiiiiiieeii e 2-5% 5-20%

Other operating assets include capitalized land and buildings with the carrying amount of ISK 1,236 million
(2021:1SK 1,251 million).

Rateable value and insurance value

Rateable value of the Company's buildings amounted to ISK 4,117 million at year-end 2022 (2021: ISK 3,998
million) and land measured at rateable value amounted to ISK 3,386 million (2021: ISK 3,025 million).
Insurance value of the Company's assets amounted to ISK 59,353 million (2021: ISK 61,518 million).

Pledge of assets

In relation to the refinancing of the Company in 2020 the pledge of all of the Company’s real estates was
released, except the undivided land Jarngerdarstadir, Grindavik, but the Company’s shares have been
pledged along with the rights, title and interest in and to the Company’s bank accounts. The Company’s
subordinated intragroup liabilities to Vesturverk have also been pledged, further details in Note 38, Related
parties.

Machine breakdown

In May 2021 a machinery breakdown occurred and there was damage to the turbine blade at the Reykjanes
geothermal power plant. The rotor was replaced to minimise downtime and the broken machinery was
written down to its recoverable amount of ISK 124 million which was determined by management based on
costs of repair. The Company has filed a claim for reimbursement with the insurance company. However, the
claim has not been recognised as a receivable at 31 December 2022.

15. Operating assets under construction

Operating assets under construction are specified as follows:

Net book value at 1 January 2021 .......oooviiiiieeie e 3.906.076
AddItioNs AUMNEG the YEAT ..civiiiiiece e 3.583.673
Net book value at 31 December 2021 ....ioiiiiiiiecie ettt 7.489.750
AdditioNs AUMNG the YEAI ..ocviiieicee e e 5.802.050
Reykjanes power plant unit 4 (REY4) transferred to Operating assets ........ccocceevveevvveevireeccneeennn.. (11.910.045)
Transferred from OPerating @SSELS .....coviiiiie e 180.198
Net book value at 31 December 2022 .....oovioiiiie et 1.561.953

Operating assets under construction at the end of the year 2022 represent mainly capitalized cost related to
the Svartsengi unit 7.

With all necessary permits obtained, HS Orka broke ground in December 2022 on the 22 MW modernisation
and expansion of the Svartsengi power plant allowing the Company to decomission older and less efficient
units of power plants 3 and 4 and to replace with a single and more efficient unit in a new power plant 7. This
first phase of the Svartsengi 7 project has been in development since 2018. The current production does not
require drilling additional wells and will allow for further optimisation of resources in Svartsengi in the future.
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16. Intangible assets
Development

Software costs Total
Historical cost
Balance at 1January 20271 .....ooovieiiiiiiieiiiecee e 378.199 1.525.906 1.904.105
Additions during the Year .......ccccevvieiiee i 4.228 13.893 18.121
Balance at 31 December 2021 .....cccovveeiiiiiiiieciie e 382.427 1.539.799 1.922.226
Additions during the Year .......cccceevvieciiciieceee e 15.684 22.555 38.239
Balance at 31 December 2022 .....c.covveeiiiiiie e 398.111 1.562.355 1.960.465
Amortization
Balance at 1January 20271 ....coovioiiiiiiieiieeeee e 316.742 146.241 462.983
Amortization for the year ... 7.672 0 7.672
Balance at 31 December 2021 ....cccccovvveeeiiiicieeiieeeee e 324.414 146.241 470.655
Amortization for the year ... 9.045 0 9.045
Balance at 31 December 2022 .....ccccovveeiiiiiii e 333.460 146.241 479.701
Net book value
Net book value at 31 December 2021 ......ccoceevvviiieeeiiiece, 58.013 1.393.558 1.451.573
Net book value at 31 December 2022 .......ccceevvvevviveeireee, 64.651 1.416.114 1.480.767
AMOrTiZation rates ...ocoiiiiiiiiiee e 10-25%

Development cost includes the costs for experimental drilling at Trolladyngja, Krysuvik and Eldvérp. Relevant
costs are capitalized to the extent that it is probable that future benefits are generated in order to recover
the investment. HS Orka hf. holds research permits in these areas and according to management results
from analysis to date are positive. If it becomes evident that the development cost will not be utilized by the
Company to generate revenue it must be expensed as an impairment cost. Management has confirmed that
the above projects are feasible and it is likely that they will generate revenues in the future.

Trolladyngja

In 2022 The Icelandic parliament accepted “Rammaaaetiun 1lI” a national Energy development plan, which
categorized existing hydro and geothermal power sites into three groups: protected sites, pending sites and
power developing sites. The Trolladyngja area is categorized as a pending site meaning more information,
research and data is required. The carrying amount of Trolladyngja was at year end 2022 ISK 683 million
(2021 year end ISK 683 million).

17. Investments in associates and subsidiaries

Investments in associates and subsidiaries are as follows:

Carrying amount Carrying amount

Shares in associates and subsidiaries Share 31.12.2022 Share 31.12.2021
DMM lausnir ehf., Iceland ........ccccceoeevvrrenen. 27,20% 11.970 27,20% 11.536
Sudurorka ehf., Iceland .......cccccevvvviiiiiinn 50,00% 0 50,00% 0
Heimsping 2020 ehf., Iceland .......c....ccccoue. 33,33% 0 33,33% 0
HS Orkurannsoknir ehf., Iceland .................. 100,00% 500 100,00% 500
VesturVerk ehf., Iceland ........cccocvviviiiiininnnn, 80,49% 588.293 80,49% 590.323
600.762 602.359
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17. Investments in associates and subsidiaries, contd.

2022 2021

Balance at beginning of YEar ..o 602.359 606.058
SNAIE OF 10SS .t (1.597) (1.271)
(1.597) (1.271)

DiVIAENAS FECEIVEM ... 0 (2.428)
Balance at YEAr €N ..o s 600.762 602.359

Heimsping 2020 ehf. is scheduled to be voluntary dissolved in the year 2023.

The following table summarises the financial information of VesturVerk as included in its own financial
statements, adjusted for fair value adjustments at acquisition:

2022 2021
REVENUES ...t e e e e e e e e e e e tabr e 988 1.654
Profit or loss and total comprehensive [0SS .......coooviiivieiiiiiceeeeeeceee (2.879) (1.442)
NON-CUITENT @SSELS ittt e e e e e e 906.943 888.162
CUTITENT @SSBES ittt e e e e e et e e e e e e s et raeeeeeeeens 9.883 580
Non-current Habilities .......coviiiiiie e (50.861) (51.659)
CUITEeNt labIlItIES «..vveieie e (135.068) (103.665)
N BT @SS BES ittt a e e 730.896 733.419
Share of HS Orka 80,49% ......c.veecureeeeeeeee e 588.293 590.323
Share of 1055 dUriNG the YEAr ....cc.viiiiiicieeec e (2.317) (1.447)
18. Investments in other companies
Carrying amount Carrying amount
Share 31.12.2022 Share 31.12.2021
Keilir ehf., Iceland ... 0,02% 0 0,02% 0
[slensk nyorka ehf., Iceland ..........cccooveenn. 8,36% 14.075 8,14% 12.575
Olfus Cluster pekkingarsetur ses. ................. 1.000 1.000
15.075 13.575

HS Orka's share in Keilir ehf. was diluted in 2020 and therefore the carrying amount has been impaired.
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19. Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are specified as follows:

2022 2021
Trade reCEIVADIES ..ooiiiiiiiiiee s 1.423.416 1.289.676
Allowance for bad debt . ... (31.767) (31.767)
Total trade reCeiVabIESs .....iiiiiiicc e 1.391.649 1.257.909
Other reCEIVADIES ..o 10.711 17.993
Receivables (iNSUrance Claim) ... 0 414.801
Receivables from subsidiary .......oocooooiiiiiii e 131.280 102.205

1.533.640 1.792.908

20. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

2022 2021
BaNK DaIanCeS ...vveiiiiieee e 6.381.226 1.359.394
6.381.226 1.359.394

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk and sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabilities is
disclosed in note 32.

21. Equity

Issued share capital, as stipulated in the Company’s Articles of Association, amounted to ISK 6,561,510 (2021:
ISK 6,766,760). One vote is attached to each share of one ISK in the Company in addition to rights to receive
dividends. All issued capital has been paid in full.

On an extraordinary shareholders meeting held on 1 September 2022, a proposal from the Board of
Directors based on Article 55 of Act no. 2/1995, respecting Public Limited Companies (the Companies Act) on
share capital reduction by 205,250 shares was approved. The share capital of the Company was reduced
based on item 2 of Paragraph 2 of Article 51 of the Company Act with payment to shareholders in the
amount of USD 10.13 million in cash (equivalent to ISK 1,429 million). The share capital was reduced by ISK
205,250 of nominal value or 205,250 shares, and was after the reduction ISK 6,561,510.

Share premium and statutory reserve

Share premium represents excess of payment above nominal value (ISK 1 per share) that shareholders have
paid for shares sold by the Company. According to the Icelandic Companies Act, 25% of the nominal value of
share capital must be held in reserve which can not be paid out as dividend to shareholders.
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21. Equity, contd.

Other reserves

Other reserves include recognized share in profit of subsidiaries and associates from 1 January 2016 in
excess of dividend received or declared. This reserve can not be declared for dividend payments. Balance at
31 December 2022 is nil (31.12.2021: nil).

Revaluation reserve
The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of operating assets, net of income tax. The revaluation
reserve may not be distributed as dividends to the Company's shareholders.

Dividends
In 2022 no dividend was distributed to shareholders (2021: No dividend distributed). The Board of Directors
propose that no dividend to be paid in the year 2023.

22. Loans and borrowings

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Company’s interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, which are measured at amortized cost. For more information about the Company’s exposure to
liquidity, interest rate and foreign currency risk, see notes 30, 32 and 33.

2022 2021
Total interest bearing debt and borrowings 1 January ......ccccoeceevvvveeieeeviveennen. 20.873.796 15.811.647
New long-term loans and BOrrOWINGS .....cccucovviiiiiieiiicciee e 2.979.690 4.562.250
Capitalized BOrrOWING COSt ..viiiiiiiiiiiiiece e (34.055) (57.724)
Repayment of long-term loans and bOrrowings .........ccccovevveevieiviiiviccicciecenen, (15.375) (15.375)
Changes related to financing cash flOWS .......c.ccooviiiiiiiii i, 2.930.260 4.489.151
Currency exchange difference ......oocovviiiiiiiic e 1.892.070 403.640
Accrued effective interests on long-term loan ........cccceeveieiieeiiii e 213.116 169.359
Other liability related changes .......covvviiiiicie e 2.105.186 572.999
Total interest bearing debt and borrowings 31 December ......c.cccceevvievieenen. 25.909.242 20.873.796

31.12.2022 31.12.2021

SecuUred Dank [0@NS .....oouiiiii e 25.909.242 20.873.796
Total interest bearing debt and borrowings .........cccocoovvveeeiiiiiiiieec e 25.909.242 20.873.796
Current maturities of secured bank 10aNS .........ooovvviiiiiiiieee e 15.375 15.375
(OIS =T ol Ao =Y o] SO PPP SRR 15.375 15.375
NON CUITENT DT oo 25.893.868 20.858.422
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22. Loans and borrowings, contd.

31.12.2022 31.12.2021

Loans in foreign currency: Weighted Weighted
Final average Carrying average Carrying
due date interest rate amount interest rate amount
Loansin USD ......ccccevvvennenne. 2025 4,75% 25.770.872 3,53% 20.720.051
25.770.872 20.720.051
Loansin ISK ...coveiveieiienne. 2031 4,95% 138.371 3,54% 153.745
138.371 153.745
Total interest-bearing loans and borrowings..........ccccccceveen... 25.909.242 20.873.796
Annual maturities of loans and borrowings are as follows: 31.12.2022 31.12.2021
YEAr 2023/2022 ..o 15.375 15.375
YEAr 2024/2023 ..o 15.375 15.375
YEAr 2025/2024 ..o 25.786.246 15.375
YEAr 2026/2025 ..o 15.375 20.735.426
YEAr 2027/2026 ..o 15.375 15.375
SUDSEGUENT 11ttt ettt e et et e e enae e 61.498 76.873

25.909.242 20.873.796

In February 2020 HS Orka secured financing from a group of four European banks consisting of a USD 100
million term loan, USD 100 million capex facility and a USD 10 million revolving credit facility. The financing
has a term of 5 years and contains financial covenants on leverage ratio and interest coverage. The term loan
of USD 100 million has been fully disbursed and was used to repay existing loans. As of year end 2022 USD 83
million are drawn on the capex facility. Drawdowns on the capex facility are recorded under liabilities (non-
current) in the Statement of financial position as the Company can unilaterally roll-over drawdowns up to the
final maturity of the facility. The revolving credit facility is undrawn.

In November 2022 HS Orka secured a new USD 62 million capex increase facility provided by two European
banks. The facility matures at the same time as the other facilities in February 2025 and contains financial
covenants on leverage ratio and interest coverage. Drawdowns on the capex increase facility are recorded
under liabilities (non-current) in the Statement of financial position as the Company can unilaterally roll-over
drawdowns up to the final maturity of the facility. The capex increase facility is undrawn.
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23. Subordinated shareholder loan

A USD 38 million subordinated and unsecured shareholder loan was provided to HS Orka in November 2022.
The shareholder loan has a term of 7 years and carries a fixed rate of 10.9% per annum, interest will accrue
until the principal amount and interest is paid in full at the maturity date.

The shareholder loan is fully drawn and available on Company accounts to be utilised pro rata with the capex
increase facility. The balance of the shareholder loan is recorded under cash and cash equivalents.

2022
New long-term subordinated shareholder 10an ..o 5.485.300
Changes related to financing Cash flOWS ......c..iiiiiiiiiic e 5.485.300
Currency exchange diffErENCE ....ciovi i (87.752)
Accrued effective interests on loNg-term l0aN .....cccviiiiiiiiiice e 65.342
Other liability related ChanNGEes ......c.ooiiiiiccc e (22.410)
Total subordinated shareholder 10an 31 DeCEMDEN ...ocoviiiiiiiiiicec e 5.462.890
24. Pension obligations
2022 2021
Pension commitment at 1 January ..o 2.852.000 2.468.000
Contribution dUring the YEAr .......ooiiiiii e, (147.877) (142.250)
CUTENT SEIVICE COSES 1iiiiiieiiiiie ettt e et e e nee e 3.089 4.244
INEEIEST EXPENSES woviiiiieeeeitiee et e e e e e e et e e e e e e e st araeaeeesaaanes 54.229 48.520
Acturial changes charged to other comprehensive income ........cc.ccoeveeeveen... 169.559 473.486
Pension commitment at 31 DECEMDEN ...c.viviiiiiiiiiieieeee e 2.931.000 2.852.000
Pension obligations are as follows:
The pension fund for State eMpPlOYEES .......covviiiiiiiiiicee e 1.502.528 1.451.537
The pension fund for Municipality of Hafnarfjordur employees .........ccccveeunn. 779.592 777.049
The pension fund for Municipality of Westman Islands employees ................. 648.880 623.414

2.931.000 2.852.000
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24. Pension obligations, contd.

According to Actuaries' and Bru Pension Fund's assessment, the Company's accrued pension obligations
amounted at year end 2022 to ISK 2,931 million (2021: ISK 2,852 million), discounted based on an interest
rate of 2.0%, taking into account the net assets of part of the pension funds. Presumptions on life
expectancy, mortality rate and discount rate are in accordance with provisions of Regulation no. 391/1998
on obligatory pension right insurance and pension funds' operation. The increase is largely due to general
salaries increase, changes in achieved rights and effect of interest for present value calculations.

25. Deferred tax liability

Movement in deferred tax liability is specified as follows: 2022 2021
Balance at beginning of Year . ..o 3.395.984 2.979.174
Changes recognized in Profit Or 0SS ....ccvecvviiiiiiice e 17.756 563.545
Changes recognized in other comprehensive iNnCOMe .........cccccoveveeiiicicciiencan, (33.912) (94.697)
TaX PAYADIE .o (139.468) (52.037)
ONEI TEEMS 1ottt ettt et e e tre e s 4.530 0
Balance at YEAr NG ..ooiiiicii i 3.244.890 3.395.984

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognized:

31.12.2022 31.12.2021

Operating and iNtangible @SSETS ......ciiviiiiiiiiie e, 4.052.545 3.845.434
Inventories and Other ITEMS ....ovii i (9.581) (2.904)
Trade and other receivables ......c.oocviiiiiiie e 7.547 63.950
Pension OBlIZAtION .......oviiiii e (586.200) (570.400)
DBIIVATIVES ettt e 193.664 106.780
LeASE TADIITY ©eieeriiieee e (154.195) (27.279)
Deferred foreign exchange difference ......c.ccoovevveiiiiiicic e (265.404) (19.595)
OB M ittt sae e ebeeebeere e 6.514 0

3.244.890 3.395.984
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26. Leases

The Company has leases for power plant, properties and land. These leases have terms of between 2 and 60
years. In 2022, the Company entered into a lease for a power plant which has a term of 2 years. The carrying
amount recognised as right-of-use asset and lease liability amounted to ISK 680 million.

Right-of-use assets
Right-of-use assets related to leased properties are presented as property, plant and equipment in Note 14.

Operating Assets.

Lease commitment

2022 2021

J L T o [V - Y PSSR PR 136.396 98.736
7AYo o uTo] o - S OPURPRPR 686.131 35.122
Non-cash additions due to increases in variable lease payments ...........cc........ 12.472 7.836
PAYIMENTS .ottt ettt et ettt e et arae e (64.025) (5.298)
AS At 31 DECEMDET .ottt e 770.975 136.396
(O T o PSRRI PPR 317.508 10.659
[ o] o R oU T = o PSRRI 453.467 125.737
770.975 136.396

The maturity analysis of the lease commitment is presented in in Note 30, Liquidity risk.

Additions to the right-of-use assets and lease commitment during the year 2022 amounted to ISK 686 million
(2021: 35 million). The Company also had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease commitment of
ISK 12 million (2021: ISK 8 million) due to increases in variable lease payments.

All leases contain variable lease payments in which the Company is the lessee. The breakdown of the total
cash outflow for lease payments is as follows:

2022 2021
Variable payments linked to the Icelandic consumer price index ..........c......... 87.948 9.052
Other variable PaYMENTS ....uiiiiiieeceece e 2.893 2.467
90.841 11.519

Amounts recognised in profit or loss:
2022 2021
Depreciation expense on right-of-Use assets .......cccovvvveviiieeiieecieccee e 113.983 7.004
Interest expense on lease liabilities ......cc.coovviiiiiicc i 26.817 6.694
140.800 13.698
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27. Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are as follows:
31.12.2022 31.12.2021

Trade PAYADIES ..o 1.528.430 1.173.207
Trade payables due to operating assets under construction ...........ccccceeveeennen. 228.640 661.466
Other PAYADIES ....veieeeeeee e 180.480 148.125

1.937.550 1.982.798

The Company's exposure to liquidity and currency risk related to trade and other payables, see notes 30 and
33.

28. Risk management

Overview
The Company's is exposed to financial risk consisting of credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. Market risk
consists of currency risk, interest rate risk and aluminium price risk.

This note provides information on the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’s management of
capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

Risk management framework

Risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the Board of Directors.
Management identifies, evaluates and manages risk in close co-operation with the Board of Directors. The
Company's risk management program focuses on addressing the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance. The Company
determines whether or not to use derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk exposures if such
derivatives are available.

29. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises principally from customers through power agreements,
counterparties in derivative hedge agreements and counterparties that keep the Company's cash and cash
equivalents.

The Company has set a credit policy where all new significant customers are evaluated for credit risk and
payment history is checked.

Most of the Company's customers have been customers for many years and loss on receivables has been
insignificant in proportion to turnover. Credit risk management includes taking into account the age of the
receivables and financial standing of each customer. The list of aged receivables is reviewed on a regular
basis. Customers that are behind in payments are not permitted to make further transactions with the
Company until they settle their debt or the Company's collection department approves further transactions
based on an agreement.
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29. Credit risk, contd.

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents an estimate of expected losses of
trade and other receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that
relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component established for companies with
similar receivables in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified. The collective loss
allowance is determined based on historical data of payment statistics for similar receivables. A receivable is
written off when it becomes clear it will not be collected, that usually happens when the counterparty files
for bankruptcy. The Company has a policy to hold cash only with reputable banking institutions.

Exposure to credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of each class
of financial assets mentioned below.

Exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:
31.12.2022 31.12.2021

Trade reCEIVADIES ....viiiiii e 1.359.882 1.226.142
Other reCEIVADIES ..viiiiii e 141.991 534.999
Cash and cash eqUIVAIENTS .....iiiiiciicc e 6.381.226 1.359.394

7.883.099 3.152.302

Age debtor analysis and loss allowance

31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Gross value Loss Gross value Loss
allowance allowance
Not Past dUE ...ceeevviiieiieeeee e, 1.400.413 24.465 1.253.206 17.959
Past due 0-30days ...ccceevveevieecieecieeee, 9.317 600 9.095 838
Past due 31-60days ....cccceeevevevveeeineeciieeenen 6.028 2.516 2.613 510
Past due 61-90days ....coceevveeeveeeieeeieeenen 4.198 1.056 11.333 1.717
Past due more than 90 days ...........cceeeuve.ne. 3.460 3.131 13.429 10.743
1.423.416 31.767 1.289.676 31.767
2022 2021
Loss allowance balance at 1 January ....ccccocceeiiieiiiicie e 31.767 31.767
Changes dUuring the YEar .....c..coiiii i (1.496) 7.866
WWEIEE OFFS o e 1.496 (7.866)
Loss allowance balance at 31 December ......oooveiiiiiieeeceeeee e 31.767 31.767

The Company does not consider credit risk from other receivables than trade receivables.
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30. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet obligations associated with financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets. The Company’s approach to managing
liquidity is to ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. At year
end 2022 the Company held cash and cash equivalents in the amount of ISK 6,381 million (2021: ISK 1,359
million) of which the proceeds from the shareholder loan amount to USD 38 million (ISK 5,398 million). In
addition USD 17 million (ISK 2,415 million) were undrawn on a capex facility, USD 62 million (ISK 8,806
million) were undrawn on a capex increase facility and USD 10 million (ISK 1,420 million) were undrawn on

the revolving facility.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments:

31 December 2022

Carrying Within 1-5 5+ Total
Contractual cash flows amount 1 year years years
Loans and borrowings ........ (25.909.242) (1.900.852) (28.413.572) (71.113)  (30.385.536)
Subordinated
shareholder loan ................ (5.462.890) 0 0 (11.135.637) (11.135.637)
Tax payable ......cccovveiiennn, (139.468) (139.468) 0 0 (139.468)
Lease commitments ........... (770.975) (366.120) (403.885) (248.612) (1.018.617)
Trade and other payables .. (1.937.550) (1.937.550) 0 0 (1.937.550)
(34.220.125) (4.343.990) (28.817.457) (11.455.362) (44.616.809)
Contractual cash flows of derivatives
Aluminium hedge ............... (15.023) 0 0 0 0
Interest rate swap .............. 639.744 573.979 90.418 0 664.396
624.721 573.979 90.418 0 664.396
Total contractual cash flows (3.770.011) (28.727.039) (11.455.362) (43.952.412)
31 December 2021
Carrying Within 1-5 5+ Total
Contractual cash flows amount 1 year years years
Loans and borrowings ........ (20.873.796) (514.403) (23.018.211) (90.241)  (23.622.855)
Tax payable ..o, (52.037) (52.037) 0 0 (52.037)
Lease commitments ........... (136.396) (17.752) (64.971) (228.271) (310.994)
Trade and other payables .. (1.982.798) (1.982.798) 0 0 (1.982.798)
(23.045.028) (2.566.990) (23.083.182) (318.512) (25.968.684)
Contractual cash flows of derivatives
Aluminium hedge ............... (21.280) (48.652) 0 0 (48.652)
Interest rate swap ............. (41.759) (82.800) 41.560 0 (41.240)
(63.039) (131.452) 41.560 0 (89.892)
Total contractual cash flows (2.698.441)  (23.041.622) (318.512) (26.058.576)

Contractual cash flows of derivatives are calculated based on forward prices.
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31. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in foreign exchange rates, aluminum prices and interest rates will affect
the Company’s income or the value of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing return.

32. Interest rate risk

The majority of the Company's long-term borrowings carries floating interest rates. To mitigate this risk the
Company has entered into an interest rate swap which included brings the ratio of fixed interest on debt to
about 63% (subordinated shareholder loan included) at the end of the year (2021: 61% fixed).

Fair value of interest rate swaps

2022 2021

Fair value of interest rate swaps at 1 January .....c...ccccoeveeevieececccie e (41.759) (357.417)
Changes in fair VAU ....c..ooouiiie e 681.503 315.658
Fair value of interest rate swaps at 31 December ........ccceovveiviiiiciecciiecee 639.744 (41.759)
Fair value is based on brokers quote.
Financial instruments with floating interest rates
FINGNCIAI @SSELS wiivviiiieiicie ettt et 6.381.226 1.359.394
FINANCIal abIlItIES .viovviieieciieie e (25.909.243)  (20.873.796)
INEEIEST FAtE SWAD ittt e e e e e e et e e e e e e 14.204.000 13.038.000

(5.324.018) (6.476.402)
Financial instruments with fixed interest rates
Subordinated shareholder [0an ......cc.cocveiiciiiie e (5.462.890) 0

INTEIEST FATE SWAP et e e e e e e e

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for floating interest rate instruments

(14.204.000)

(13.038.000)

(19.666.890)

(13.038.000)

An increase or decrease in interest rates of 100 basis points at the reporting date would have increased
(decreased) the return after tax by the following amounts. This analysis is based on the assumption that all
other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis was performed on the
same basis for the year 2021.

Profit or loss

100 bp 100 bp
31.12.2022 increase decrease
Financial instruments with floating interest rates .......coccvvievvi i (42.592) 42.592
Cash flow sensitivity analysis, Net .......ccccocviiiiiiiiicce e (42.592) 42.592
31.12.2021
Financial instruments with floating interest rates .......cccccocvvevviiiieccie e (51.811) 51.811
Cash flow sensitivity analysis, NEt ......cc.coviiiiii e (51.811) 51.811
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32. Interest rate risk, contd.

Fair value sensitivity analysis for changes in interest rates

An increase or decrease in interest rates of 100 basis points at the reporting date would have increased
(decreased) the return after tax by the following amounts. This analysis is based on that all other variables, in
particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis was performed on the same basis for the

year 2021.
Profit or loss

100 bp 100 bp
31.12.2022 increase decrease
Embedded derivative in power sales contract .........cccoceeeveieeeeiie e, (5.755) 5.953
ATUMINIUM NEAZE ..o 43 (43)
INTEIEST FATE SWAD c.viiviiiiiiete ettt ettt ettt 67.797 (69.179)
TOTAl e 62.085 (63.269)
31.12.2021
Embedded derivative in power sales contract ..........ccoeevveeeieecie e, 666 (863)
ATUMINIUM NEAZE ..o 30 (30)
INTEIEST FATE SWAD cvviiviiitiieti ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt eaeaae s 223.036 (229.008)
TOTAL et 223.732 (229.902)

33. Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk due to sales, purchases and borrowings that are
denominated in currencies other than ISK. The currencies in which these transactions are primarily
denominated are US Dollar (USD) and Euro (EUR). Exposure to other currencies is insignificant.

The Company currently does not use forward contracts or other derivatives to hedge against foreign
exchange rate risk. However, about 33% (2021: 33%) of the Company's revenue is in USD mitigating the risk
from USD denominated debt.

Exposure to foreign exchange risk

The carrying amounts of foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as

follows:
31.12.2022 Assets Liabilities
B R et 31.731 0
U D e 5.978.581 31.306.138
TP Y e 216.387 208.490
6.226.699 31.514.628
31.12.2021 Assets Liabilities
B R s 19.500 10.367
US D e 1.427.366 20.807.175
TP Y 40 0

1.446.906 20.817.542
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33. Foreign exchange risk, contd.

Average exchange rate Year end exchange rate
Exchange rates against the ISK were: 2022 2021 2022 2021
EUR e 142,33 150,19 151,50 147,60
USD et 135,46 127,05 142,04 130,38
JPY e 1,03 1,16 1,08 1,13

Sensitivity analysis

A 10 percent strengthening of the ISK against the following currencies at 31 December would have increased
(decreased) profit or loss after tax by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis was performed on the same basis for

2021.

2022 2021
EUR oottt ettt (2.538) (731)
USD oottt ettt ettt 2.026.205 1.550.385
P ettt ettt (632) (3)

A 10 percent weakening of the ISK against the above currencies at 31 December would have had the equal
but opposite effect on profit or loss after tax to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other
variables remain constant.

34. Aluminium price risk

In 2004 the Company signed a power sales agreement with Nordural on power supply until 2026. The
agreement is USD denominated and the power price is linked to the price of aluminum on the London Metal
Exchange (LME). The Company entered into derivative agreements fixing an aluminium price range for the
period of January-December 2023. The purpose is to mitigate the aluminum price risk fluctuations and
secure the contracted income, i.e. to secure the revenue when prices go below the defined range or realise
less income if prices go above. In 2022 around 90% of sales to Nordural was hedged against changes in the
price of aluminium.

The power sales agreement with Nordural features an embedded derivative, the value of which depends on
the futures price of aluminium. However, at the beginning of the agreement the embedded derivative has no
value. As market value is not available for these embedded derivative, generally accepted valuation methods
are applied to determine the fair value. The present value of cash flows over the remaining lifetime of the
power contract is calculated on the basis of the London Metal Exchange (LME) futures on the reporting date.
From this number, the present value of cash flows based on aluminium price assumptions on the date of the
power agreements is subtracted. The fair value change between reporting dates is recognized in the income
statement.

When calculating the present value of the embedded derivatives, the Company applies a discount rate based
on US risk free rates plus a risk spread.
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34. Aluminium price risk, contd.

Fair value of embedded derivatives is as follows:

Fair value of embedded derivatives at 1 January ........cccccevvvievieiiiie e
Changes in fair VAU ...oovioiiiecc e
Fair value of embedded derivatives at 31 December ........cccevvvveeviiciiieeneen,

Interest rates used for determining fair value of embedded derivative ..........

2022 2021
596.938 (1.571.752)
(253.341) 2.168.690
343.597 596.938
6.1-5.3% 0.9-1.9%

The Company has entered into derivative hedge agreements to mitigate risk to aluminium price exposure

arising from the Nordural power sales agreement. Hedging strategy is reviewed at least annually.

Fair value of aluminium hedge derivatives is as follows:

Fair value of aluminium hedge derivatives at 1 January ......ccccoeeeeeverivveeenenn,
Realised aluminium NEAEES ......c..ooiviiiiiice e
Other changes in fair VAlUe .....c..oooviiiiiiie e
Fair value of aluminium hedge derivatives at 31 December ..........ccccccoveeeuneenn.

Sensitivity analysis

2022 2021
(21.280) 0
86.957 (338.037)
(80.700) 316.756
(15.023) (21.280)

A 10 percent increase or decrease of aluminium prices at 31 December would have increased (decreased)
profit or loss after tax by the amounts shown below. The analysis was performed on the same basis for 2021.

Increase of 10%
Embedded deriVatiVES ..........oiiiiieee e
Aluminium hedge derivatiVeS .......cccoiiiiiieeiiiecee e

Decrease of 10%
Embedded deriVatiVES ..........ooiiiiii e
Aluminium hedge derivatiVes ..o

35. Classification of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are classified as follows:

Financial assets

Financial assets recognised at amortised COSt .......c.oovvieviiiiieeiiiccec e
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss .......cc.coooeeviiiiiiiiiicee

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or [0ss ........ccccovvviiviieiiiiiiee,
Financial liabilities measured at amortized COSt .......ccccovviiiiieeiiiiiieicieeciee

Profit or loss

2022 2021
713.435 905.529
(54.408) (39.012)
659.027 866.517

(713.435) (905.529)
48.219 21.002
(665.216) (884.526)
31.12.2022  31.12.2021
7.914.866 3.152.302
358.672 610.513
8.273.537 3.762.815
15.023 63.039
34.220.125  23.045.028
34.235.148  23.108.066
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36. Fairvalue

Fair value versus carrying amounts

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the statement

of financial position, are as follows:

31.12.2022
Carrying Fair value
amount
Int. bearing long-term debt (level 3) ............ 31.372.132 31.372.132

Interest rates used for determining fair value for disclosure purposes

31.12.2021
Carrying Fair value
amount
20.873.796 20.873.796

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present value of future

principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date.

Interest rates used for determining fair value:

Margin on interest-bearing long-term foreign debt ........c..cocoeiviiiiiiiiiiee,

2022

1,75%-2,5%

Fair value of other financial assets and liabilities is equal to their carrying amount.

2021

1,75%-2,5%

The table below analyses assets and liabilities carried at fair value, sorted by valuation method. The different

levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly (ie. as prices) or indirectly (ie. derived from prices).

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
31 December 2022
Operating assets ...ccccooovvieeeiiiie e 0 0 56.033.557 56.033.557
Embedded derivatives .........cccceevveeiiiiennennn, 0 343.597 0 343.597
Aluminium hedges .......ccoceevvevieeieiieceeee. 0 (15.023) 0 (15.023)
Other derivatives ......cccveoveeeviicciecciceeiee 0 639.744 0 639.744
Investments in other companies .................. 0 0 15.075 15.075
TOtal o 0 968.318 56.048.632 57.016.950
31 December 2021
Operating assets .....ccoovvveeeeiiiie e 0 0 45.056.809 45.056.809
Embedded derivatives .........cccceevveeviiennnennn, 0 596.938 0 596.938
Aluminium hedges .......ccocevvevieiieieececee. 0 (21.280) 0 (21.280)
Other derivatives .......cccoeeveveveecieecieeeee 0 (41.759) 0 (41.759)
Investments in other companies .................. 0 0 13.575 13.575
TOtal e 0 533.899 45.070.384 45.604.283

Financial Statements of HS Orka hf. 2022 43 Amounts in ISK thousands



Notes to the Financial Statements

37. Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base to sustain future development of the business.

The Company's Board of Directors seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by lower levels of
borrowings. The equity ratio was 41.5% at year end 2022 (2021: 50.6%). Equity ratio if subordinated
shareholder loan would be classified as equity was at year end 2022 49.4%.

38. Related parties

Identity of related parties
The Company has a related party relationship with its shareholders, subsidiaries, associates, its directors and
executive officers and other companies owned by them.

Interest

Sale Purchase income Receivables Payables

31 December 2022
Parent entities ...........ccue.... 3.625 0 0 217 0
Subsidiaries ......cccoceeevieninns 0 0 9.076 131.280 0
ASSOCIates ..covveeeiiieeiin 67 7.737 0 200 0
3.692 7.737 9.076 131.697 0

31 December 2021
Parent entities .........c.ccuve... 2.125 0 0 0 0
Subsidiaries ......ccccocvevvienenns 0 0 6.871 102.205 0
ASSOCIAteS vvvvieeiiiieeeiiieee 73 12.182 0 17.180 1.247
2.198 12.182 6.871 119.385 1.247

In 2022 HS Orka provided a loan to VesturVerk ehf. for the amount of ISK 20 million. Outstanding loan
principle and accrued interest at the end of the year is ISK 131 million (2021: ISK 102 million).

39. Subsequent events

Legal

HS Orka filed a lawsuit against the Icelandic State in the year 2022 based on the grounds of illegitimate
electricity supervision charges collected from 2018. In January 2023 the Ministry of Finance agreed to the
Company's claim but the the final figure is yet to be confirmed and settled. No claim has been recognised as
a receivable on 31 December 2022.

HS Orka filed another lawsuit against the Icelandic State in the year 2022 based on the ruling of the Reykjavik
District Court from 8 March 2019 in case no. E-205/2018 where HS Orka claimed penalties for lost profits
from the Icelandic State on the grounds of unlawful discrimination in a tender process. The settlement of the
case is in process.

On 20 April 2022 Orkuveita Reykjavikur requested arbitration of a dispute regarding the interpretation of a
provision in the power purchase agreement between Orkuveita Reykjavikur, HS Orka on the one hand, and
Nordural on the other hand. The hearing is scheduled in December 2023, but a conclusion is not expected
until 2024.

Financial Statements of HS Orka hf. 2022 44 Amounts in ISK thousands



Appendix: Corporate Governance Statement, unaudited

Legislation and corporate governance

The Company complies to the Public Limited Companies Act (Act No 2/1995), as amended, the Annual Accounts
Act (Act No 3/2006), and other applicable legislation and regulations. The Board of Directors of HS Orka hf.
stresses the importance of maintaining good management practices in accordance with Guidelines for Corporate
Governance, version 6. The Company’s articles of association, last reviewed on 1 September 2022 lay down the
framework for the governance of the Company, together with the Board’s rules of procedure. The Company’s
article of association can be found on the Company’s webpage.

The Company complies to all main aspects of the Guidelines for Corporate Governance but as each shareholder
nominates Board members there is no acting Nomination Committee and consequently all Board members are
dependent of the Company’s major shareholders.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income, and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Internal control and risk management

To ensure that the Company’s financial statements are in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practice, the Company has focused on well-defined areas of responsibility, proper segregation of duties, regular
reporting, and transparency in its activities. The process of monthly reporting and reviews is an important part of
monitoring financial performance and other key performance indicators.

The Board of Directors, according to its rules of procedure, defines the risk factors that the Company must
address, including the nature and extent thereof. It also defines remedial action for the risks in question. In
addition, the Board verifies the effectiveness of internal control and risk management.

The main role of the of HS Orka’s Audit Committee, in accordance with its rules of procedure, is to ensure the
quality of financial statements and other financial information, and the independence of auditors.

An auditing firm is elected at the Annual General Meeting for a term of one year. External auditors are not
allowed to own shares in the Company. External auditors examine the Company’s annual financial statements in
accordance with international standards on auditing and, to this end, inspect accounting records and other
material relating to the operations and financial position of the Company. External auditors have unlimited access
to the general ledger at all times. External auditors report any significant findings regarding accounting matters to
the Board of Directors via the Audit Committee in the audit report.

The Board of Directors and sub -committees of the Board

According to the Company’s Articles of Association the Company is managed by:

Shareholders meetings
The Board of Directors
The Chief Executive Officer
The ultimate authority in all affairs of the Company, within the limits established by the Company’s articles of

association and statutory law, lies with the statutory shareholder meetings. The ultimate beneficial owners (UBO)
of HS Orka are funds managed by Ancala Partners Ltd and fourteen Icelandic pension funds.
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The Board of Directors and sub -committees of the Board, contd.

The Company’s diversity policy is a part of the policy of equality, last reviewed 16 September 2022. The policy
states that the Company provide diversity and equality to all in employment, irrespective of their age, gender,
sexuality, nationality, national origin, religion or belief or political opinions. The Company opposes all form of
unlawful and unfair discrimination of any kind. The Company’s team has varied background, knowledge,
experience, and abilities. The Board of Directors is gender-balanced, with four members providing international
experience with wide-ranging educational and professional backgrounds. The members of the Executive Board
are experts in their specialised fields, with various educational backgrounds. Three out of the seven members are
women.

The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is the supreme authority in the affairs of the Company within the limits established by law,
the Articles of Association, and the Shareholders’ Agreement .

The Board consists of four members nominated by shareholders, elected at the Annual General Meeting for a
term of one year and responsible for the affairs of the Company. The Board of Directors operates in accordance
with the Company’s Articles of Association and the Board’s rules of procedure were last reviewed on 30 March
2022. Board’s rules of procedure can be found on the Company’s website.

The Board’s main roles and duties are as follows:

a. Entering into a contract of employment with the CEO and supervise his work.

b. Responsibility for long-term strategy.

c. Supervising all aspects of the Company’s operations and ensuring that the Company’s organisation and
activities are always in good and proper order. The Board ensures adequate supervision of accounting and
disposal of the Company’s financial assets and, at least once a year, ratifies the Company’s operating plan
and budget.

d. Defining, at least once a year, the risk factors that the Company must address, including the nature and
extent thereof. It also defines remedial action for the risks in question. In addition, the Board regularly
verifies the effectiveness of internal control and risk management. It ensures that employees can report
failures to prevent risk and incidents in the Company’s operations without any kind of detrimental effect to
their employment.

When evaluating its size and composition, the Board takes into account the Company’s operations, policies and
practices and the knowledge, experience and expertise of each Board member. The Board considers its size and
composition to be in line with the Board’s aim, i.e. to execute its duties in an efficient manner with integrity in the
best interest of the Company.

Representation of women and men on the board in 2022 is equal. The members of HS Orka’s Board of Directors
are: Mr. Adrian Pike (Chairman), Mr. Bjarni pérdur Bjarnason (Vice Chairman), Ms. Heike Bergmann and Ms.
Ingunn Agnes Kro.
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The Board of Directors, contd.

Mr. Adrian Pike, Chairman of the Board, was born in 1967 and lives in Grazely Green, United Kingdom. Mr. Pike
has been on the Board since 2 July 2020. He is qualified electrician, holds degrees in Electrical Engineering and
Management. He has over 30 years’ experience in the utility and energy infrastructure sectors. Mr. Pike started
his career as an apprentice electrician at Scottish and Southern Energy and rose through the ranks to become
Group Managing Director. In 2010 he co- founded Anesco Ltd. and was the Chief Executive Officer to 2016. Later,
Mr. Pike co-founded InstaVolt Ltd., a rapid EV network and is currently the Chairman of the Board. Furthermore,
Mr. Pike is Chairman of the Board of Enviromena.

Mr. Bjarni Pérdur Bjarnason, Vice-Chairman of the Board, born in 1969 and lives in Reykjavik, Iceland. Mr.
Bjarnason has been on the Board since 10 June 2019. He is certified as Security Broker and holds a C.S degree in
Mechanical Engineering from the University of Iceland and Business Administration from SMU Cox School of
Business. Mr. Bjarnason has experience in corporate finance and in recent years advised, both Icelandic and
foreign, investors in M&A and capital raising. Mr. Bjarnason co-founded Arctia Finance and is currently the
Deputy Chief Executive Officer. Furthermore, Mr. Bjarnason is a Board member of Arctica Eignarhaldsfélag,
Arvakur and pérsmérk. From June 2003 to October 2009 Mr. Bjarnason was the Head of the Corporate Finance
department at Landsbankinn hf. Previous, he was the Assistant Head of Bunadarbanki’s Corporate Finance and
prior to that in a similar position at Gilding investment fund.

Ms. Heike Bergmann, born in 1968 and lives in Heidenheim an der Brenz, Germany. Ms. Bergmann has been on
the Board since 24 May 2019. She holds a degree in Master of Business Administration and Electrical Engineering,
from the Technische Universitdt Darmstadt. Ms. Bergmann has experience in sales and marketing in the utility
and energy infrastructure sectors. From July 2016, she is the Senior Vice President Sales Africa at Voith Hydro
Holding GmbH&Co, previously in a role as Managing Director from 2012 within the same company. From 2011 to
2012 she was a Service Unit Manager at Alstom Grid Inc. and Sales Director from 2007 to 2010 at Areva T&D. She
is Vice Chairwomen of the Sub-Sahara Africa Initiative of the German Industry (regional initiative of the BDI) and
member of the Private Sector Advisory Board of GIZ (Deutsche Gesellschaft flr Internationale Zusammenarbeit
GmbH).

Ms. Ingunn Agnes Kro, born in 1982 and lives in Reykjavik, Iceland. Ms. Kro has been on the Board since 10 June
2019. She is a certified District Court Attorney and Securities Broker with a master's degree in Law and in
Business Administration from the University of Iceland. Ms. Kro has experience in corporate law, corporate
governance and sustainability matters and has been a Board member in various companies. She currently is the
General manager at Jardvarmi slhf. since 2020 and sits as Board member in Icelandic Seafood International hf.,
Sjova-Almennar tryggingar hf., Freyja slhf. and The wetlands fund. Previously, Ms. Kro was the Chief Executive
Officer at [slenska Vetnisfélagid, a company founded to introduce and create infrastructure for hydrogen as an
energy carrier in transportation. Ms. Kro worked at Skeljungur for ten years, from 2009 to 2019, first as General
Counsel, later as Compliance Officer as well and from 2017 to 2019 as Director of Administration and
Communication.

All Board members are independent of the Company and its day-to-day managers, meaning that the Board
members do not own, direct or indirect any shares in the Company, they have not carried out any work for the
Company nor have any other connections to the Company’s main clients or competitors. All Board members are
dependent of the Company’s major shareholders, the reason being that there are only two shareholders in the
Company.

Once a year the Board conducts self- assessment where each Board member evaluates the work, results, size and
the composition of the Board and the Board’s sub-committees. The results provide the Board to continuously
improve efficiency, strategic foresight, stewardship, value creation and corporate culture. The Board,
furthermore, evaluates the work and results of the CEO.
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The Board of Directors, contd.

The communication between the Shareholders and the Board of Directors takes place at statutory shareholder
meetings. General Meeting is held annually before 30 April and Extraordinary General Meetings are called as
needed in accordance with the Company’s articles of association and applicable laws. Regular Board meetings are
held with the management team over the course of the operating year including on-site visits. Board members
and the management team communicate, in between meetings, through emails and telephone and additional
meetings are convened as needed.

In the course of 2022, the Board of Directors held eleven meetings with 100% attendance.

Sub-committees

The sub-committees are two in total, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Audit Committe

The Audit Committee (AC) is a sub-committee of the Company’s Board of Directors and is appointed by and
operates under the authority of the Board of Directors. The establishment of an AC does not detract from the
responsibilities of the Board or relieve it of any liability. Each Board member must have an overview of the
matters addressed by the Committee.

The Audit Committee operates in accordance with its rules of procedure, last reviewed on 23 August 2022,
available on the Company’s website. The Committee is responsible for reviewing and assessing the quality of the
financial information received from management and provide oversight of the audit process. The Committee
ensures that the information given to the Board on the Company’s operations, status and future prospects are
reliable and give the clearest possible picture of the Company’s position at any given time.

The Committee’s key activities and tasks are to:

a. Monitor working processes in the preparation of financial statements, the corporate governance statement
and non-financial information;

b. Review the post-audit management letter together with the management’s response and follow up on
mitigating action with the management;

c. Assess management reports on the Company’s finances;

d. Monitor the arrangement and efficiency of the Company’s internal controls, internal auditing (where
applicable), risk management (including responses to risks) and follow up on remedies to shortcomings
identified during internal controls;

e. Monitor the auditing of the Company’s annual financial statements, including reviewing and challenging
where necessary;

f. Assess and manage the work of the Company’s auditors and review their findings.

The Audit Committee consists of three members, one appointed by each shareholder and one independent
member. The members are Ms. Hildur Arnadéttir (Chairman and independent), Mr. Juhani Sillanpaa and Mr.

Bjarni Pérdur Bjarnason.

In the course of 2022, the Audit Committee held four meetings with 100% attendance.
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The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee (RC) is a sub-committee of the Company’s Board of Directors and is appointed by
and operates under the authority of the Board. The establishment of a RC does not detract from the
responsibilities of the Board or relieve it of any liability. Each Board member must have an overview of the
matters addressed by the Committee.

The Remuneration Committee operates in accordance with its rules of procedure, last reviewed on 26 September
2022, available on the Company’s website. The Remuneration Committee consists of two members, one
appointed by each shareholder.

The Remuneration Committee assists the Board in ensuring that compensation arrangements support the
Company’s strategic aims and enable the recruitment, motivation and retention of senior executives, while also
complying with legal requirements.

The Committee’s key activities and tasks are to:

a. Prepare and submit to the Board of Directors a draft policy on the remuneration of the Board of Directors,
CEO and the executive management and monitor execution of that policy;

b. Collect specific information and present it to the AGM, to enable the shareholders to fully understand the
structure of the employment terms of the Board of Directors, the CEO and other managers;

c. Monitor compliance of wages and other employment terms with the laws, regulations and best practices in
place at any given time, prepare the Board’s decisions on salary and other remuneration of the CEOQ, and
present to the Board of Directors a draft proposal to the AGM regarding the remuneration of Board and
committee members and the auditors.

The Remuneration Committee consists of two members appointed by each shareholder. The members are Mr.
Adrian Pike and Ms. Ingunn Agnes Kro.

In the course of 2022, the Remuneration Committee held seven meetings with 100% attendance.

The Chief Executive Officer

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) is appointed by the Board of Directors and is in charge of the Company’s daily
operations. He is responsible for the Company’s accounts and recruitment of staff. He is obliged to follow Board
policies and instructions and to provide the Board of Directors and Company auditors with any information
pertaining to the Company’s operations which they may request and which may be required by law. The CEO
represents the Company in all matters relating to its normal operations. Normal operations do not include
measures that are unusual or extraordinary. The CEO may only take such measures if specifically authorised to do
so by the Board, unless it is impossible to wait for Board’s decision without substantial disadvantage to the
Company’s obligations. In such an event, the CEO must inform the Board of any action taken without delay.
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The Chief Executive Officer, contd.

The CEO of HS Orka hf. is Mr. Tdmas Mar Sigurdsson. He is born in 1968 and lives in Reykjavik. Mr. Sigurdsson
holds an M.Sc in Planning from Cornell University, United States and a B.Sc. in Civil and Environmental
Engineering from the University of Iceland. Mr. Sigurdsson was appointed as CEO of the Company from 1 January
2020. Prior to that, Mr. Sigurdsson was the Senior Vice President, Strategic Alliances for Alcoa Corporation,
Pittsburgh, USA, CEO of Alcoa Fjardaral and Alcoa in Iceland but moved to Geneva in 2011 where he became the
President of Alcoa Europe. From 2014 to year end 2018 Mr. Sigurdsson was the Executive Vice President and
Chief Operating Officer for Alcoa Corporation. He was the chairman of the Iceland Chamber of Commerce from
2009 to 2012 and served as a member of the Federation of Icelandic Industries in 2005-2011. He was also a
member of the Executive Committees of the European Aluminium Association, Eurometaux, and the American
Chamber of Commerce to the European Union from 2012 to 2014. When working for Alcoa Mr. Sigurdsson sat on
number of boards for Alcoa Corporation and was a member of the Executive Committee of Europe Aluminium
and Business Europe. From 2019 to 2020 Mr. Sigurdsson was the Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors of
fslandsbanki. He is currently a board member of the Dutch shipping company Cargow B.V.

The CEO is not a shareholder in the Company, neither directly nor indirectly and has no connections with
principal clients or competitors or major shareholders in the Company. No share option agreement exist between
the CEO and the Company.

The Executive Board

The Company’s Executive Directors are seven. The Executive Board is responsible for strategic planning and
decision making according to the mission, vision, and values of the Company as laid down by the Board of
Directors. The Executive Board reports directly to the CEO and support the CEO in the daily operations. The
members have various backgrounds, specialising in various fields, and three out of the seven members are
women.

Arna Grimsdottir Executive Vice President of Legal Affairs

Asbjérn Blondal Executive Vice President of Project Development

Bjork borarinsdottir Executive Vice President of Finances and Information Technology
Fridrik Fridriksson Executive Vice President of Sales and Services

J6n Asgeirsson Executive Vice President of Strategy and Resource Park

Kristinn Hardarson Executive Vice President of Production

Sunna Bjorg Helgaddttir  Executive Vice President of Technology

Regulatory compliance

In the year 2022, the Company has not violated any laws or regulations to any court or administrative order.
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Business model, materiality and stakeholders

HS Orka is a power company owned (ultimate beneficial owner) 50% by Ancala Partners and 50% by Jardvarmi
slhf., a dedicated investment vehicle owned by several Icelandic pension funds. HS Orka has power licences of
214.9 MW in total for electrical power production, of which 205 MW is for geothermal and 9.9 MW s for
hydropower production. The Company also purchases power from other producers in Iceland. Produced and
procured power is sold to households, private and publicly owned companies as well as to retail energy providers.
HS Orka also produces hot water for heating and cold, potable water for sales to the regional distribution utility
which delivers the products to neighbouring communities. Most of the households that purchase power from HS
Orka are long term customers of the Company. Furthermore, HS Orka produces geothermal by-products, such as
brine and steam, which it delivers and sells to companies located in the Resource Park in the vicinity of its
geothermal power plants.

In 2022 the Company identified six material topics in a new materiality analysis. Each topic is assessed in terms of
HS Orka’s actual and potential impact, as well as its overall importance for the Company’s stakeholders.

Sustainable use of natural resources

The condition and utilisation of the geothermal resource has a material impact on HS Orka’s long-term
performance. The Company has further increased its efforts to build knowledge on the geothermal resource. The
number of employees dedicated to this task has increased from three to seven in the last three years and
modelling of the resources has materially improved, both supporting the continuous review of measurement
campaigns and drilling plans. The target is to ensure the sustainable use of the resource. This also assists the
Company in fulfilling its reporting responsibilities and in monitoring one of its major risks, i.e., seismic and
volcanic activity in the vicinity of its geothermal power plants.

Safety and risk management

The Company addresses safety and risk management which is of major importance to its employees and to the
public by implementing its environmental, health and safety policies which are an integral part of its management
systems. In 2022 a training system for contractors was developed and implemented as a requirement prior to
work. Efforts to build risk awareness and diligence in prevention and follow up among employees continued. An
employee survey on safety culture was conducted for the third time and it revealed a marked improvement from
the previous survey in 2019.

Climate issues

Carbon dioxide is emitted as Scope 1 emissions from HS Orka’s power plants in Svartsengi and in Reykjanes and as
such it is of importance to the authorities and to the general public. The Company has issued public, quantitative
and timed commitments to reduce CO2 emissions and has assigned resources to actively seek ways to mitigate
emissions by carbon capture and utilization (CCU) as well as carbon capture and storage (CCS) while other
emissions are addressed by a mix of avoidance and remediation through offsets.

Security of power supply and related infrastructure

Any disruption of supply from HS Orka has a material impact on companies and households that are located in the
vicinity of the power plants, especially on customers that get thermal energy from HS Orka. The relevant
infrastructure is partly under the responsibility of HS Orka and partly under responsibility of third parties.
Resources have been directed towards strengthening the maintenance of HS Orka’s assets and align the
organization with the goal of delivering all necessary maintenance. Clear objectives with regard to operational
availability have been set. Interfaces between the infrastructure of HS Orka and that of 3rd parties is being
clarified in terms of ownership and corresponding responsibility.
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Business model, materiality and stakeholders, contd.
Circularity in the Resource Park

Companies in the Resource Park (RP) take more than one resource stream from HS Orka’s power plants, some of
them using streams that otherwise would be wasted. However, the management is not aware of further
circularity in the RP, that is to say that there are no known cases where a byproduct or waste of one company
(apart from HS Orka) is an input for another company. The management believes that developing circularity
further is an important element in maintaining and strengthening the position of the RP as a green industrial park,
attracting companies which bring sustained long-term business. Developing circularity is thus considered a
material topic which nevertheless is not entirely under the control of HS Orka. The Company is addressing this by
actively seeking contact with companies in sectors which could make use of outputs of other companies in the
resource park and vice versa and conducting studies to identify opportunities in this respect.

Responsible consumption and production

This material topic is addressed in various parts of the 2022 sustainability report. It encompasses activities such as
the treatment of waste and more generally the Company’s efforts in limiting waste in all its processes. It also
involves the management of air pollution, handling of harmful substances, publishing of information about the
Company’s operations, and responsible procurement practices. The Company is working on clarifying
requirements for its suppliers and contractors with regard to ESG and will evaluate a list of key suppliers in 2023.
This material topic also has a clear reference to one of HS Orka’s chosen UN Sustainable Development Goals of
the same name as the topic.

A more detailed deliberation about the materiality analysis can be found in the 2022 sustainability report.

Towards the end of July 2022, an increase in seismic activity was monitored at the eruption site at Fagradalsfjall
and close to Grindavik. The seismic activity led to an eruption on 3 August, when a new fissure opened about 1
km east of the main crater and about 8.5 km away from Svartsengi. The eruption was very active in the beginning
but showed a rapid decline and lasted until end of August. Since then, the activity has not picked up again. The
eruption did not have any negative effects on the operations at Svartsengi.

The expansion of Reykjanesvirkjun is in its final stages and towards the end of the year. On 21 December 2022,
the commissioning of new low-pressure 30 MW turbine started. The project improves the utilization of existing
processes by making use of previously underutilized streams. The project will be finalized in the first quarter of
2023 when safety- and final inspections have been completed.

Sustainability and social responsibility — policy and focus

Management systems

In recent years the Company has developed and adopted a quality management system (ISO 9001),
environmental management standard (ISO 14001), occupational health and safety management standard (I1SO
45001) and an equal pay management system (IST 85:2012). All the systems are certified.

The Company is working on embedding process thinking in all aspects of its operations. Management is
committed to this project as a multi-year transition and engagement of all employees is needed for its success.
This will, together with certified management systems to manage policies, objectives, and procedures, cement
the reliability of the business and ensure that internal and external requirements are met.

Indicator: 1ISO 9001, 45001 and 14001 were maintained (2021: maintained certification).
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Sustainability and social responsibility — policy and focus, contd.
Natural Resource

HS Orka has been entrusted with natural resources. The Company’s role is to maximise the yield and value of the
resource in a sustainable, responsible, and efficient manner. Furthermore, the Company has for decades pursued
and facilitated the diverse utilisation of geothermal resources with the end goal of fully utilising all by-products.

Monitoring of natural resources has undergone major changes in recent years. This has contributed to improved
resource optimisation as a result of advances in research and earth sciences in general. Monitoring of the
geothermal resource considers environmental factors in each area individually and holistically. For example,
changes in physical and chemical factors are monitored with constant measurements of temperature, pressure,
conductivity, water levels and chemical composition. In 2022, continued emphasis has been on the constant
development in the conceptual models and the newly developed reservoir models for Reykjanes and Svartsengi.

HS Orka is in compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements set out by the National Energy Authority of
Iceland.

Social responsibility

In 2022 HS Orka published its first sustainability report (for 2021) in accordance with the GRI standards. The
standards serve as a guide for goal setting, change management and performance measurement. In 2023 the
sustainability report for 2022 is published at the same time as the 2022 financial statements.

UN Sustainable Development Goals (SDG)

In 2022 HS Orka chose six SDGs to incorporate into its ESG vision and activities. Those six are #5 Gender equality,
#7 Affordable and clean energy, #9 Industry, innovation, and infrastructure, #12 Responsible consumption and
production, #13 Climate action and #15 Life on land.

Community involvement

HS Orka has a policy of backing local communities by supporting social projects and activities. The specific items
supported vary from year to year, but the Company supports different charities depending on need and the
quality of applications. Apart from support based on a process of applications the Company is also a strong backer
of sports and sport teams in local communities.

Indicator: The total amount of sponsorships amounted to ISK 25.5 million in 2022 (2021: ISK 16.0 million).

Risk Management

HS Orka follows a formal risk management process based on I1SO 31000 to continuously identify and manage the
Company’s key risks. A comprehensive management tool has been implemented which increases transparency
and improves risk management for each of the Company’s key processes. Risks identified are recorded in the
Company’s risk register where both inherent and residual risk (risk mitigation included) is scored. Owners of key-
processes present the risks they manage to the process committee. The process committee reviews the
identified risks and risk scoring before board review.

A priority has been kept on Health, Safety and Environment (HSE) risk identification management where
programs on fatal risk and preventing controls are in focus. Furthermore, focus has been on resource
optimization, i.e. to seek balance in production and long term sustainability.
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Sustainability and social responsibility — policy and focus, contd.
Environment

HS Orka has an operating permit from health authorities and is compliant with the applicable environmental laws
and regulations. HS Orka has an ISO 14001 certified environmental management system. The organisation works
towards fulfilling its environmental policy with preventive and reduction measures with regard to the
environmental aspects of its operations. The main objectives are eliminating carbon emissions (becoming net-
zero) before 2040 and reducing emissions intensity. Generally, a key focus is on actions that aim to avoid
occurrences of environmental accidents in HS Orka’s operations.

Indicator: ISO 14001 certification was maintained. No significant environmental accidents occurred in 2022.
(2021: maintained certification).

HS Orka is working on a climate strategy to reach its goal of carbon neutrality. The key goals are to achieve 26 g
CO2/kWh in 2030 and net -zero emissions in 2040. More detailed deliberation about the climate strategy can be
found in the 2022 sustainability report.

Indicator: Emission intensity was 34 g CO2/kWh in 2022 (2021: 30.4 g CO2/kWh). In 2022, direct emissions were
94,738 tonnes of CO2eq and indirect emissions involving corporate flights and waste management were 89
tonnes of CO2eq (2021: 86,700 tonnes and 75 tonnes respectively). Additionally, indirect emissions of material
used for construction work were 4,002 tonnes CO2eq.

HS Orka has actively increased the share of electric and plug-in hybrid vehicles in its fleet since 2015 and the
objective is to reach 100% eco-friendlier vehicles in 2030. The organisation thus participates in the transition to
clean energy.

Indicator: Share of eco-friendlier vehicles — 65% in 2022 (2021: 67%).
Indicator: Share of electric and hydrogen vehicles —32% in 2022.

Indirect emissions due to waste management and corporate flights resulting from the Company’s operations
increased by 15%, due to ending of international flight restrictions due to covid and the Reykjanes power plant
construction work. As a mitigation effort the Company has supported projects in forestry. The goal is to sort 95%
of waste by 2030.

Indicator: Waste sorting —91% in 2022 (2021: 90%).
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Human resources and human rights
Human resources

The HS Orka Values (Dedication — Vision — Integrity) sets the course for HS Orka and its employees. The
Company's operations require a vast degree of expertise, and its sustainable growth and successful innovation is
dependent upon recruiting the right staff and minimizing the risk of losing them. This is done by creating and
maintaining an interesting workplace with clear values and by paying special attention to Company culture.

HS Orka’s aim is to attract and retain employees who are dedicated to working in line with the Company’s values.
HS Orka’s human resource policy ensures that the workplace combines professional knowledge, know-how,
excellent service, positive working spirit and mutual respect. The policy was drafted in cooperation with
employees and is revised regularly, most recently on 16 September 2022. HS Orka has a clear gender policy in
place as part of in its equal opportunities policy, as required by Act No 10/2008. HS Orka’s Board of Directors
consists of four members —two men and two women — and its executive board consists of seven members — four
men and three women. HS Orka received acknowledgement in 2022 for gender balance from the Association of
Businesswomen in Iceland (FKA).

Indicator: At the end of 2022 the percentage of female workers at HS Orka was 19% (2021: 19%).
Indicator: HS Orka maintained certification of (ST 85:2012 in the BSI audit in 2022 (maintained in 2021).

The Company has policies, rules and frameworks regarding safety and health, victimisation, employee behaviour
and performance for the benefit of the employer. The Company has a policy of zero harm, registers all incidents
and keeps records on accidents and absence due to illness. In 2022, no lost time incident was recorded but there
were two incidents where employees needed treatment at the emergency room.

Indicator: HS Orka maintained ISO 45001 certification in the BSI audit in 2022 (2021: maintained certification).

Human rights

The Company is committed to ensuring that all people are treated with dignity and respect. Human rights
violation risks include illegal labour conditions and child labour. HS Orka is committed to complying with all laws,
rules, and regulations in relation to fundamental human rights. This includes, but is not limited to, forced labour,
workplace abuse, human trafficking, and other forms of discrimination. HS Orka’s commitment to operate with
integrity means avoiding corruption in any form and complying with anti-corruption laws.

In addition, the Company maintains certified quality standards and strict safety rules to ensure the safety of its
employees and the contractors providing services to it. Major contracts with contractors, including
subcontractors, require compliance with labour laws and health and safety regulations.

Financial Statements of HS Orka hf. 2022 55





